
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
July 20, 2015 

6:30 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session:  Labor Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)]  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the minutes of July 6, 2015 
b) Abatement of personal property taxes that were assessed in error 
c) Approval of Games of Chance for the Brunswick Knights of Columbus Council, #5008,         

2 Columbus Drive 
d) MMA Annual Election of Vice President and Executive Board 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Report on the creation of the Mid Coast – Parkview Health System 
(b) Financial update 
(c) Nomination papers availability  
(d) Update on Zoning Ordinance Rewrite 
(e) Report on the process to name the Kate Furbish Preserve trails 
(f) Update on upcoming roadwork on Nancy Drive, Patricia Road, and Pierce Lane 
(g) Update on Pine Street Bicycle and Pedestrian Access to Brunswick Landing 
(h) Reminder of the public meeting regarding downtown Brunswick’s consideration for a 

Commercial Historic District nomination by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission   
 
  



2 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

80. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 15 
“Traffic and Vehicles” of the Municipal Code regarding restriction of overnight 
parking in municipal lots on Union Street, and other miscellaneous parking 
changes, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
81. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 10 

“Licenses and Business Regulations” of the Municipal Code regarding sellers of 
prepared food on a public way to require a 72 inch pedestrian walkway when placing 
outdoor seating on the sidewalk, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
82. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Solarize Brunswick” program, and will 

take any appropriate action. (Councilor Walker and Chair Brayman)  
ACTION 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 

 
 
  



3 
 

 
Brunswick Town Council 

Agenda  
July 20, 2015 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 
 
Executive Session:  Labor Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)]  
 
Suggested motion:   
Motion to go into executive session to discuss labor negotiations per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the minutes of July 6, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in the packet. 
b) Abatement of personal property taxes that were assessed in error:  The Assessor has 

identified an account that was assessed in error and is requesting an abatement.  A copy of 
her memo is included in your packet. 

c) Approval of Games of Chance for the Brunswick Knights of Columbus Council, #5008,         
2 Columbus Drive:  This is the six month renewal of beano for this organization.  A copy of 
the application is included in your packet. 

d) MMA Annual Election of Vice President and Executive Board:  The Council will vote for 
the MMA Vice-President and Executive Committee Members.  There are no contested 
races.  A copy of the information from MMA is included in your packet. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Report on creation of the Mid Coast – Parkview Health System:  Lois Skillings, President 

and CEO of Mid Coast, and Randee Reynolds, President and CEO of Parkview, will inform 
the Council and public about combining these local healthcare organizations.  

(b) Financial update:  Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial status 
at the end of the fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be included in your packet. 

(c) Nomination papers availability: Nomination papers for Town Council and School Board 
will be available starting Friday, July 24th, and need to be returned no later than Friday, 
September 4th. Districts 3, 4 and one of the At Large seats for both the Town Council and 
School Board will be up for election in November. 

(d) Update on Zoning Ordinance Rewrite:  This item provides an update on this process.  Anna 
Breinich will be at the meeting to answer any questions. 

(e) Report on the process to name the Kate Furbish Preserve trails:  The Council will receive a 
report regarding the process underway to name the trails on the Kate Furbish Preserve.  
Bridger Tomlin, the Bowdoin Fellow, will be providing this brief report. 

(f) Update on roadwork on Nancy Drive, Patricia Road, and Pierce Lane:  This item is to 
provide information on these road projects.  On July 9th the Town opened four bids for the 
storm drain work contemplated for these streets.  The bid was awarded to Crooker 
Construction, LLC.  The storm drain work was estimated at $200,000 and is the first phase 
in the estimated $580,000 road reconstruction project the Town has voted to bond.  The 
second phase includes reconstruction of the base.  The final phase is paving.  Construction 



4 
 

is expected to start by mid‐August and be completed next year.  Copies of a memo from 
Manager Eldridge and the bid results are included in your packet. 

(g) Update on Pine Street Bicycle and Pedestrian Access to Brunswick Landing:  This item is 
to inform the Council and the public of the construction of this access from the terminus of 
Pine Street to the Perimeter Road on Brunswick Landing.  Work is expected to begin the 
week of July 27th and be completed by September.  A copy of a memo from Manager 
Eldridge, providing additional information on the schedule and funding, is included in your 
packet. 

(h) Reminder of the public meeting regarding downtown Brunswick’s consideration 
for a Commercial Historic District nomination by the Maine Historic Preservation 
Commission:  This item is to remind the Council and public of the meeting on July 
24th at Town Hall at 10:30 a.m. to allow for public input on this nomination. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

80. This item is the required public hearing on amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic 
and Vehicles” of the Municipal Code regarding a restriction on overnight parking 
in municipal lots on Union Street, and other miscellaneous parking changes. 
Included in the miscellaneous changes are the following: providing for 30 minute 
spots at Town Hall during business hours, and no parking on sections of Barrows 
Drive at Coffin School, a section of Federal Street on Railroad Bridge, the corner 
of McLellan Street and Harpswell Road, the intersection of Storer Road and Old 
Bath Road, and a section of Page Street.  Details on these changes are outlined in 
a memo from Commander Waltz. Copies of the memo and draft amendments are 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” of the Municipal 
Code regarding restriction of overnight parking in municipal lots on Union Street, and 
providing for 30 minute spots at Town Hall during business hours, and no parking on 
sections of Barrows Drive at Coffin School, a section of Federal Street on Railroad 
Bridge, the corner of McLellan Street and Harpswell Road, the intersection of Storer 
Road and Old Bath Road, and a section of Page Street. 

 
81. This item is the required public hearing on amendments to Chapter 10 “Licenses and 

Business Regulations” of the Municipal Code regarding sellers of prepared food on a 
public way to require a 72 inch pedestrian walkway when placing outdoor seating on 
the sidewalk (originally proposed as 60 inches, but the Council voted to go to public 
hearing with 72 as it was more restrictive and could be changed back to 60 if that was 
the decision of the Council).  Further research by staff determined that the United 
States Access Board’s technical requirements call for a minimum of a 60 inch passing 
zone on sidewalks.  This amendment comes as the result of concerns by Councilors 
and citizens regarding restaurants that have outdoor seating extending too far onto the 
sidewalk. This will ensure that those getting town permits must provide adequate 
space for pedestrians to pass.  Copies of the draft amendment and a memo from 
Manager Eldridge along with Technical Requirements from the US Access Board, are 
included in your packet.  The Town is also preparing an inventory of current sidewalk 
seating and sidewalk distances.  Due to the amount of work this entails, this 
information will be provided prior to the meeting. 

 



5 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to Chapter 10 “Licenses and Business Regulations” of the 
Municipal Code regarding sellers of prepared food on a public way to require a 72 OR 
60 inch pedestrian walkway when placing outdoor seating on the sidewalk. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
82. This item, sponsored by Councilor Walker and Chair Brayman, is for the Council to 

consider adopting the “Solarize Brunswick” program, as discussed at your June 15th 
meeting.   Alex Anesko from the Recycling and Sustainability Committee will be at the 
meeting to make a presentation and answer questions.  Copies of the PowerPoint 
presentation, background information, draft RFP, and a sample flyer are included in 
your packet.  

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Solarize Brunswick” program as outline by the Recycling and 
Sustainability Committee and attached to the official minutes. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 

Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 
Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. 
Wilson, and John Richardson Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Linda Smith, 
Business Development Manager; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning 
and Development; Cathy Jamison, Assessor; Julie Henze, Finance 
Director; Mark Waltz, Police Commander; Dan Devereaux, Marine 
Resource officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda  
 
To remove Item CA-b from the consent agenda to be voted on separately, and to put item 77 as 
the first business item. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (This item was discussed at 7:05 p.m.) 
a) Approval of the Minutes of June 15, 2015 
b) Approval of the Minutes of June 29, 2015 
c) Approval of a quitclaim deed for a mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 467 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to approve Consent Agenda 
items CA –a and CA-c.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve Consent Agenda item 
b.  The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Richardson, Councilor Walker, and 
Councilor S. Wilson abstained as they were not at the meeting of June 29th. 
 
(A copy of the quitclaim for item CA-c will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:07 p.m.) 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding the school presentation and the lack of school 
maintenance.  He did not like the architect’s comments.  He looked at the schools and they 



Town Council Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

appeared to be rather nice.  Maintenance is part of responsible ownership, and the school 
should hire a full-time maintenance person.   
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Perreault congratulated the Brunswick Boys Lacrosse Team on winning the state 
championship. 
 
Councilor Walker said he received calls expressing concern that an overabundance of outdoor 
cats are getting into people’s yards and presenting dangers to the bird population.  He would 
like to explore the idea of a cat licensing ordinance. 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:14 p.m.) 
 
A report was given regarding the Finance Committee. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Announcement of Notice of Availability and Public Comment Period on a Proposed 

Plan regarding Installation Restoration Site 12 – Former Naval Air Station (This item 
was discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge provided this report. 
 
(A copy of the announcement will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(b) Nomination papers availability  (This item was discussed at 7:16 p.m.) 

 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk, provided information on this item. 
 
(c) Update on workshop with School Board regarding facilities (This item was discussed at 

7:18: p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this report, and responded to questions from Councilor S. Wilson. 
 
(d) Report on Planning Board Special Permits (This item was discussed at 7:20: p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this report.   
 
Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development, responded to questions from Councilor 
Millett, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Perreault. 
 
(A copy of the letter from Ms. Breinich will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(e) Acknowledgement that Downtown Brunswick is being considered for a Commercial 

Historic District nomination by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission (This 
item was discussed at 7:31 p.m.) 



Town Council Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 
Manager Eldridge provided this report.   
 
(A copy of the Commission’s letter, a map, and fact sheet will be attached to the official 
minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
73. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special Amusement 

license application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was 
discussed at 7:33 p.m.) 

 
Special Amusement 
1337 Beer LLC 
D/B/A: Ebenezer’s Brew Pub   Christopher & Jennifer Lively 
112 Pleasant Street 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Town Clerk Fran Smith explained this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve a Special 
Amusement license for Ebenezer’s Brew Pub, located at 112 Pleasant Street.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
74. The Town Council will hear public comments on a Community Development 

Block Grant MicroEnterprise Assistance Program contract amendment, which is 
assisting two Brunswick businesses, Anew Studio and Fair Winds, Inc., with grant 
funds to undertake building/leasehold improvements and technical system 
enhancements, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was 
discussed at 7:35 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, spoke regarding this item.  She responded to 
questions from Councilor Harris and Councilor Perreault. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt the “Brunswick Town 
Council Resolution – Micro Enterprise Assistance Grant Program for Anew Studio and 
Fair Winds, LLC” (located on page 7 in the contract amendment document) approving 
acceptance of an additional $72,000 as a MicroEnterprise Assistance program grant 
contract amendment.   



Town Council Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Millett, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Richardson, Councilor K. 
Wilson, Chair Brayman, and Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt the “Brunswick Town 
Council Resolution – Micro Enterprise Assistance Grant Program for Anew Studio and 
Fair Winds, LLC” (located on page 7 in the contract amendment document) approving 
acceptance of an additional $72,000 as a MicroEnterprise Assistance program grant 
contract amendment.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Harris was 
opposed as he did not support Anew’s application. 
 
(A copy of the application will be attached to the official minutes.)  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 77 was taken up as the first business item. 
 
75. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for July 20, 2015, on 

amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” of the Municipal Code 
regarding restriction of overnight parking in municipal lots on Union Street, and 
other miscellaneous parking changes, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:16 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge and Commander Waltz spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Commander Waltz responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
July 20, 2015, on amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” of the Municipal 
Code regarding a restriction on overnight parking in municipal lots on Union Street and 
other miscellaneous parking changes.   The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
76.  The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for July 20, 2015, on 

amendments to Chapter 10 “Licenses and Business Regulations” of the Municipal 
Code regarding sellers of prepared food on a public way to require a sixty inch 
pedestrian walkway when placing outdoor seating on the sidewalk, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:24 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item, and responded to questions from Councilor 
Millett. 
 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Watson, Councilor S. 
Wilson, Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Walker spoke regarding this item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to set a public hearing for July 
20, 2015, on amendments to Chapter 10 “Licenses and Business Regulations” of the 
Municipal Code regarding sellers of prepared food on a public way to require a 72 inch 
pedestrian walkway when placing outdoor seating on the sidewalk.  The motion carried 
with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Millett was opposed. 
 
77. The Town Council will consider authorizing an overexpenditure of the Town’s 

appropriation for social services in the amount of $17,888.08 plus interest to 
provide a grant to Family Focus for 2014 property taxes, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:00 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson said he was abstaining since he is on the Board of Family Focus. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Perreault and Councilor K. Wilson asked questions, to which 
Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
Chair Brayman opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Ben Tucker, Maine Street, and Family Focus Board member, spoke regarding this item.  He 
responded to questions from Councilor Millett and Councilor Watson. 
 
Manager Eldridge responded to questions from Chair Brayman. 
 
Councilor Millett and Councilor Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to authorize an overexpenditure 
of the Town’s appropriation for social services in the amount of $17,888.08 plus interest 
to provide a grant to Family Focus for 2014 property taxes.  The motion carried with 
eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Richardson abstained. 
 
(A copy of the memos from Manager Eldridge and Assessor Cathy Jamison, along with articles 
of incorporation for Family Focus, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
78. The Town Council will consider approving a 1% COLA for non-union hourly 

employees, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was 
discussed at 8:43 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item.   
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson and Councilor Watson asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge 
responded. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to approve a 1% COLA for non-
union hourly employees for the fiscal year 2015-16.  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
(A memo from Manager Eldridge and a proposed pay scale will be attached to the official 
minutes.) 
 
79. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee)  
(This item was discussed at 8:50 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Millett made the following nominations: 
 
Davis Fund Committee 
Alison Harris – reappointment for a term to expire on 06/30/2018 
Sande Updegraph - reappointment for a term to expire on 06/30/2018 
Personnel Board 
Jessica Flaherty – appointment as alternate for a term to expire on 01/12/2018 
Recycling and Sustainability Committee 
Pamelia Edgerton– reappointment for a term to expire on 01/12/2018 
Trust Fund Advisory 
John Donovan – reappointment for a term to expire on 05/10/2018 
Village Review Board 
Sande Updegraph – appointment for a term to expire on 10/20/2017 
Laura Lienert – moving her current appointment to the district representative spot and keeping 
her expiration the same 10/20/2016.  
 
The Council supported the slate with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor S. Wilson was not present 
for the vote. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. Councilor S. Wilson was not present for the vote. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith  
Town Clerk 
July 10, 2015 
 

July 20, 2015 
Date of Approval 



Town Council Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 7 
 

 
 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 







 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 













 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,147,860   1,153,360   1,153,360.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,147,860   1,153,360   1,153,360.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      489,397     569,397     541,249.97      46,983.17            .00      28,147.03   95.1%
11100 Finance Department      715,425     674,425     660,600.79      64,489.93            .00      13,824.21   98.0%
11150 Technology Services Dept      327,848     327,848     313,051.55      19,323.60       4,947.57       9,848.88   97.0%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,615      85,615      82,606.53      20,389.20            .00       3,008.47   96.5%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      210,720     210,720     194,706.70      21,388.55       1,885.05      14,128.25   93.3%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal            0           0         496.15         496.15            .00        -496.15  100.0%
11230 Risk Management      473,750     463,750     453,077.41         853.33            .00      10,672.59   97.7%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0            .00     186,330.82            .00            .00     .0%
11250 Cable TV       47,790      50,790      48,776.82       4,544.19            .00       2,013.18   96.0%
11300 Assessing      293,660     275,660     263,421.98      24,155.74       1,254.18      10,983.84   96.0%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      362,077     360,477     346,525.12      35,683.42       3,995.00       9,956.88   97.2%
11900 Planning Department      490,779     503,504     487,982.80      48,897.75       3,505.00      12,016.21   97.6%
11950 Economic Development Dept      109,087     109,087     100,219.78      10,762.33       1,620.00       7,247.22   93.4%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,606,148   3,631,273   3,492,715.60     484,298.18      17,206.80     121,350.61   96.7%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,104,392   3,078,742   3,052,110.80     296,625.60      12,575.00      14,056.20   99.5%
12150 Central Fire Station       42,089      45,739      36,130.90       3,140.76         500.00       9,108.34   80.1%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       41,825      49,825      46,583.72       5,182.95         500.00       2,741.28   94.5%
12200 Police Department    3,762,478   3,687,478   3,658,715.77     353,806.93            .00      28,762.23   99.2%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      40,088.81       2,330.77            .00     -40,088.81  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      777,412     757,412     745,537.07      74,090.61            .00      11,874.93   98.4%
12250 Police Station Building       98,020      98,020      93,134.96       6,312.67            .00       4,885.04   95.0%
12310 Streetlights      208,000     208,000     202,714.78      16,584.04            .00       5,285.22   97.5%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600      24,251.91       2,101.66       6,000.00       1,348.09   95.7%
12330 Hydrants      438,790     443,790     442,995.80     106,548.00            .00         794.20   99.8%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000       1,662.65            .00            .00         337.35   83.1%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,506,606   8,402,606   8,343,927.17     866,723.99      19,575.00      39,104.07   99.5%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      429,111     429,111     426,210.38      47,220.43            .00       2,900.62   99.3%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,706,214   2,056,214   1,924,834.87     110,251.48     113,690.72      17,688.41   99.1%
13130 Refuse Collection      581,847     601,847     565,616.13      50,404.43      29,737.18       6,493.69   98.9%
13140 Recycling      297,729     297,729     272,400.56      23,594.93      23,834.88       1,493.56   99.5%
13150 PW Central Garage      741,300     851,500     823,654.19       7,969.78            .00      27,845.81   96.7%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,756,201   4,236,401   4,012,716.13     239,441.05     167,262.78      56,422.09   98.7%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      163,607     173,607     167,979.72      12,817.60         654.60       4,972.68   97.1%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       3,766       3,040.06         696.97            .00         725.94   80.7%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  166,373     177,373     171,019.78      13,514.57         654.60       5,698.62   96.8%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,763,587  35,763,587  33,038,396.21   5,285,032.15            .00   2,725,190.79   92.4%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,763,587  35,763,587  33,038,396.21   5,285,032.15            .00   2,725,190.79   92.4%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      456,225     466,225     461,292.98      47,200.03       1,080.00       3,852.02   99.2%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      678,434     686,434     645,599.17      82,554.52      12,051.90      28,782.93   95.8%
15250 Rec Building 211      160,327     148,327     132,983.02      17,472.59            .00      15,343.98   89.7%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      115,000     120,000     110,673.55            .00            .00       9,326.45   92.2%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,285,000   1,293,000   1,288,255.20     120,363.33            .00       4,744.80   99.6%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,709,986   2,728,986   2,653,803.92     267,590.47      13,131.90      62,050.18   97.7%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      164,917     158,417     153,613.95          15.00            .00       4,803.05   97.0%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       4,000       4,856.18       3,356.18            .00        -856.18  121.4%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account        9,000    -166,000    -173,286.63    -203,286.63            .00       7,286.63  104.4%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    186,917      20,944      -4,816.50    -199,915.45      14,526.97      11,233.50   46.4%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      252,000     252,000     252,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      264,890     264,890     264,890.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
18040 Police Station Bond      405,625     405,625     405,625.02            .00            .00           -.02  100.0%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0         232.54            .00            .00        -232.54  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    922,515     922,515     922,747.56            .00            .00        -232.56  100.0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,370,395  55,117,219.87   6,956,684.96     232,358.05   3,020,817.30   94.8%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:45    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   36,189,094  36,189,094  36,474,964.34       5,931.26                   -285,870.34  100.8%*
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000     -20,450.93            .00                    -54,549.07   27.3% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      65,501.48      11,469.41                      9,498.52   87.3%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       12,000      12,000      14,622.69          12.00                     -2,622.69  121.9%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       12,000      12,000      17,999.85            .00                     -5,999.85  150.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      150,000     150,000     200,350.30      95,950.00                    -50,350.30  133.6%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      157,895     157,895     413,833.00            .00                   -255,938.00  262.1%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      427,247     427,247     321,993.00            .00                    105,254.00   75.4%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,343       3,343            .00            .00                      3,343.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,825,000   2,825,000   3,042,326.47     312,504.66                   -217,326.47  107.7%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000      25,269.05       4,605.70                       -269.05  101.1%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        4,000       4,000       4,059.94            .00                        -59.94  101.5%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        39,605,579  39,605,579  40,560,469.19     430,473.03                   -954,890.19  102.4%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   39,605,579  39,605,579  40,560,469.19     430,473.03                   -954,890.19

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000      14,100.00       1,450.00                     -6,100.00  176.3%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98            .00                        -39.98  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        2,000       2,000       3,078.00         645.00                     -1,078.00  153.9%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      132,500     132,500     158,946.05      13,189.20                    -26,446.05  120.0%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      31,004.87       2,139.78                         -4.87  100.0%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       20,500      20,500      21,502.50       3,312.50                     -1,002.50  104.9%*
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,300       1,300       1,120.75         136.50                        179.25   86.2%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,502       2,502       2,750.00          82.00                       -248.00  109.9%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       45,000      45,000      54,131.60       4,957.00                     -9,131.60  120.3%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,250      24,250      21,357.50       3,360.00                      2,892.50   88.1%*
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       20,675      20,675      19,550.00       2,550.00                      1,125.00   94.6%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       15,175      15,175      19,000.00         175.00                     -3,825.00  125.2%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,510       4,510       4,944.00         142.00                       -434.00  109.6%*
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         485.43          19.99                       -485.43  100.0%*
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       15,000      15,000      32,673.31       7,990.92                    -17,673.31  217.8%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500         350.00          50.00                        150.00   70.0%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600       1,050.00         135.00                       -450.00  175.0%*
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee            0           0         425.00          25.00                       -425.00  100.0%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening            0           0       1,954.00         898.00                     -1,954.00  100.0%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XhsbpRnASAeIfJ/dKYXeVY6y0Sg6Mck9US2TWQ9Ry7amt4iQFoJhtAfInH9c42SN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TZteFM1QVnFepa3la54sbtqRL9Ntj%2BaVki8o830HKXnX%2B%2BXFg6E0He2zGQX7%2BNeQ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sLu7WQcT4ORj8DK7aJUlawE39rEwHKG9i6FRnHYI/5E2aZMIvpSNdUNJpz8MMOYo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7L31BgJrZi/1mz8B/hvSc5xJ115rXiMWjVPtL34q0/ygO%2BqZjZKw9RZb6Nbz0Tz5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MnGVEAt2hFZtlMRglbFPPV97M3OakmkKpdQQwtjDp7t0VU0IU22ToMn6qQdNLNMs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kDJZrkmwPvzkhAkTw3pe1tcp%2BcH8bE%2B/z0XE7XsSLV5lbZkry4o%2B%2BemSdrPwblto&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f%2BTWV3ueOyGUFLHTWqf%2BAUZb2EBmIIrB2lPULopZp8EQQruvBehGu6hlOxMgGKqc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XxngrXNpdc96YmuhHCBiXLRiAgYlbdR6GJC%2B/oHNUUtGvzuKlyyHgQ/7Rmzfm6K1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qHiEdj58tX14xJZBHDhQjvx%2B7miN51L/lVOfcB9y9pyHMVuCEctFFejZZu8WVvqv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rX0iBwWHqV8%2Bx6jdKV%2Bbpb0mv2HBHzVMguw4qIIn2YvoqP2d766IeLYd/QG8c6Z2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gH6bfyrF9XByCOp4J4dOn26QUgnIPA17LQNQWL4dXvhJ5udifqrnC7BOdrnyLJZF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BEXCn2cqssREDCXL%2B7mJNAY9rHGy1qmylrfWKDQjyBy/brXS4K3H7e89Z7RajE7p&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kEvupMtBfB%2BPenFx98QxJgQZxa2fcqyPKGQOrEersD54okDjKx8kKRDI%2BsrFF7hS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HAsFcJBUev8/hUktsLWV2VX0ZcgeT/ENPodUQk8e7x1xAeNANVeD7HrWEtxvcCDv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LEzTLOqyLsH55qeoqOjcsWwCmNjsvklvSNuVP8Vti5j7Vz9rniLBd6stjchFnCB8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1TE8o%2Bo9uc/FzohnBdQkDibXrg5DTXP68jA63f9xh5s8mtkk6TGeu4lC6QINe5uP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=l08JVu9gYI2C68jYHRSn03b3TFIxkwTBZujzpYQk31LwwElAVWuyLi5so1MzVW1K&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Bk7xkpgHkEu%2BtK6oyJNFMRFlwqUuIvrPxt2zod2ZCH%2BSgYYs4QzWwwIlMxTa%2Bt43&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3SlKIXpBAXTP9EFnQsAuSKuwuaDNXgPlAzWqWd0BkeRPD5wk2QmdoiL3Xx/B6dra&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bS4b7NnuJjqJ8KjDPbQ1JsTSrNSnNLDn6un2ImH28rRXZmD1cQpe6fclg6GuZC3q&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UfQmx3Y46Rs19RkzbA%2B5G6ugrSwYFjlXCieGQHmgkAC0RczKRpjYSOuyybTMmy2k&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=be8U1U/gNDXjJlWfkpIg7vIwEp3BXTMp67Gu9kgcX9oApAuPEkCzRQpg1EsPluvC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cinRiWBxLF6cTFyzLtNrIu6bAblis8lNOQ/5VVqkt98aIGkq75VpraOBqnQCz0Vu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ffi6RYdWM4YdhAORlORyHzHBgQZk725JFOcVMpWubCgv/2pK2InhbTduQwnQIMVF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Q9YruGY3LX1%2BL9ED7YNs8%2B8nmmkbj9JmfiqjalZ8WJqqgSx19YmQVRNGD5IYy%2BQF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ajY7bZjkbaZ0tzJaMasojXSQzlf0riQc/TtRDW%2BYIfedq%2Bz8YAG6kYmq/YNWgCuI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=H8rmKcar3PmUGoyg1aFxpQ7qqK/vhZDoz6sqjBq1Bbm7ml/bO/yt%2B%2Bl0czvesXAx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LQmMD2NgESY70AG0cnUlBYoqhnhc5vrdj9kt/v9dmxBqXiauQDVzOYa4tl8we2Iq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Th%2BY6HvY9DjPoZC0QEycluw2VHKUpBn4%2BeVCpCsKr/%2B5pGPZfdcF7bMohqPkoBRW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=g35Xq/VucXdO9OqC5kQsJkBTXplwPcrdhbVCZCJqqrtU38MguWL/VAEHM%2BC8yYfz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2aSGyu%2Bf4dwPsMpf0xmtdrCGW79NXd1A40/M4aO5KfcdTAP3%2BWbbce7gJBrcHoni&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uuINuPS6YmPqWO4KAyHSrwWoNVvMxYYPe93Ctz/wGMt12Dxg31SJcC20WeTqGPWs&


 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:45    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 323,512     323,512     388,462.99      41,257.89                    -64,950.99  120.1%
 

TOTAL REVENUES      323,512     323,512     388,462.99      41,257.89                    -64,950.99
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000      14,911.25            .00                         88.75   99.4%*
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      214,000     214,000     197,188.00            .00                     16,812.00   92.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000      33,099.66       4,054.68                     -9,099.66  137.9%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000       8,175.51            .00                     31,824.49   20.4%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing      977,671     977,671   1,047,789.33     102,516.03                    -70,118.33  107.2%*
131192 43105  Emergency Management            0           0      11,146.71            .00                    -11,146.71  100.0%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400       1,628.52            .00                       -228.52  116.3%*
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,946,831   9,946,831   9,763,144.16     665,894.45                    183,686.84   98.2%*
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0           0      13,758.19            .00                    -13,758.19  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,218,902  11,218,902  11,090,841.33     772,465.16                    128,060.67   98.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,218,902  11,218,902  11,090,841.33     772,465.16                    128,060.67

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      53,166.49       5,446.00                     -3,166.49  106.3%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500       1,614.00         326.00                       -114.00  107.6%*
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0       1,200.00         100.00                     -1,200.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0       1,353.96         261.44                     -1,353.96  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     928,961.34     128,624.62                    -53,961.34  106.2%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       2,899.60         484.00                     -1,899.60  290.0%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       3,563.87            .00                       -563.87  118.8%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       4,629.50         863.00                     -1,029.50  128.6%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       84,000      84,000      84,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      47,541.00       3,792.00                    -46,541.00 4754.1%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      141,500     141,500     141,496.25      10,994.27                          3.75  100.0%*
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      20,820.65       2,515.20                      4,179.35   83.3%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      137,000     137,000     164,328.30      73,428.59                    -27,328.30  119.9%*
145051 44121  Rental of Property            0           0       1,920.00            .00                     -1,920.00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,322,600   1,322,600   1,457,494.96     226,835.12                   -134,894.96  110.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,322,600   1,322,600   1,457,494.96     226,835.12                   -134,894.96

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,250       6,250      11,400.00       1,275.00                     -5,150.00  182.4%*

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=twMkLcJMPqwqFtOmRv3PBEpIkrD71Su6hOOQVJVoilY6LXMrCttOcfrykYgKNX1G&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SKXgaVf9GbLa3jw/optxZ/hM2UR84ht7Y/pLJCBFnZWvBSREiBHDKyMnkU7wSBJe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5fHebbp4A7vsARteOYOO2dDotjjMjAVq7xFD5qFLYbdl0INYyPPXx1Ehm/hUnEVl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OkZu%2B/Rh/AVv3zpJKsg64hqANzljz5irGkICddVO6JuhHBMUPJgR1vgh94JpLomV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SERvxwUWFIOQNkeEkYlNKq%2BfHybYinjfPeEPgmPe9plkRjMSHO9d18Yqh0kFSPVH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EiJRMtDLDLMyC3igzaAfELggsSMWjbv3BbE128yTdX87fMjWOXA9kLoe8vV93f/g&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GhDdfni3Mb/bkfeGYmEn8BBu4MgqhQ16jQ4ezHPo6SRXvvXJRW5S0DLNFeXWEBSX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=r8Xtf2sjB6SWp82eT9J1bHbAB9oWV/tuKAygi46KrGMtK8SYuzjQZWOfGJZuC%2BcA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OdKtSQ5gzIk9ME26xXhifA3M2Jvm/qfhNYXFLfFBpp7KlRZMlKa7/7u9lkXgLEfq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=st2gBjAWuI9%2BuXmRjzR5vkr9kIhJLhn%2BZlo5w3SfWZA8WFXXuKkMJ%2BXWQK8CKgMy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LGbEyV1kJXYzCr0ew23ynv58lfLDrJLyrlgNRBLKNlEiWJ921P0PamL0vz5Hl5WA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=I0g0fw2Nv02kmhmOFLr8yx2QR5mt6kaM4qCT9YlwXoOFf0PWzr3EA%2Bi9vFQcbYRw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OcZ9sEKr78TXzpw58%2BeQFrb4jruuQYKsRJuNVQo3zZf3LtLERcxtSA8Lo2dnCHSG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3UZRhOwrlCNa4KU079yx2KsxrUqxsoiw1CHH1D4sXAxsL3R4dm70stBNR7FkuaL9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Vy433UQFAPCozpbB9jH27WksqJUs7nvzHhfSlSvrRms5edkQOyxFtLNsvGwGZN9X&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uXB4r3kAI8xSsV/9hpFHMZpziInPsVUkCMhI8AxTa9LUwUbZJ6YHRSEhqPSv0HDq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KnzPMGpG0qYceqix9zz3cBX1WpHX4%2BPEmUZllh5iXb1uulCNfIzrg14FIf3WBDsf&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8E57/RhJp%2BDRuYahCsr1VKOVWXvnhslGu/oXyCNpQhIPIX5g%2Bgo%2BwXVvYVbSTVDx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CLHOfzgriMII0C%2Bnh593x4Vz1Dg1/tR4tGwkCrDbPTylDfNsvUqTSQp1qdeChblK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BESCpTMobZEXCklGF9HibUmrXdGUt427BRlhdyJ5NzGZyKgUyL1oei/REwtYSxHs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=igl7qIG9rbE5hhX%2BvkDTt8dXivBh8XGa4RODAG7m2Ao73DKTnbaydE0pHgjbVGfR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xFZCOBa36O0Mq1a4ZYZpW0baBTJBZ9HFiDmZlr%2BZ6/98px95zPruSkK%2B8P6UrzB6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3/duibSRu%2BEHA9HLyu7aNLY84F4ruliaX3Btlo5KLhvsz0gSZghfNTeB/hRC6e7f&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wx%2BalREJ2TrRYoTc35Jf/dEzF84FqCxWxx%2BNxZ%2BZf2goOAVvJju/ZdLV3/mxGCxX&


 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:45    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000         325.00            .00                        675.00   32.5%*
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         400.00         200.00                       -400.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600       2,419.00         489.00                     -1,819.00  403.2%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      40,135.00       3,295.00                    -20,135.00  200.7%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600         125.00          75.00                        475.00   20.8%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          20.00          10.00                        280.00    6.7%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,372.88            .00                     -1,372.88  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,750      28,750      56,196.88       5,344.00                    -27,446.88  195.5%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,750      28,750      56,196.88       5,344.00                    -27,446.88

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       40,000      40,000      10,155.85       1,679.32                     29,844.15   25.4%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  40,000      40,000      10,155.85       1,679.32                     29,844.15   25.4%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,000      40,000      10,155.85       1,679.32                     29,844.15

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000      94,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000      15,208.50      15,208.50                       -208.50  101.4%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000     109,208.50      15,208.50                       -208.50  100.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000     109,208.50      15,208.50                       -208.50

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   1,200,000            .00            .00                  1,200,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0%*
184500 48003  Allocation for School      185,000     185,000            .00            .00                    185,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,810,000   2,810,000            .00            .00                  2,810,000.00     .0%*
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      342,000     342,000            .00            .00                    342,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       5,132.74       1,084.84                     -4,132.74  513.3%*

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kUD5T8kO5x6RV2nnesDzJUsxZ1%2B9sUmw306u17gLk%2Byyd187P/BoQ4U8MAUyILij&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AmjeAyMA2vuiMKpFwL5BhTBmV5eW2HtB60U3B3%2B%2BGBhMq5TaJfZp899Lp8NCIFL9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Btr49oB63AWj07hWvFJwZcvKvboHlyaAhoubxGPU7v688bPMQCWjA4BWw70czwMZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ycT10KL52qLy9bS/L10kAqXiBF92jqRxWj9oAi4Ts1G9aUQhl36LPweF79ZkxiYg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VbkP%2BmnHU5BQPKpxTbWRFMizrM0LTgvcqDWTh%2BKKuIKSKTNWjgxCO8QAgiduccDV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ay5%2BrNVvMaSY1tp9zsUPGRqGIDiUeiXtcd1UjquuibvZagA6u8boYEDPOlrFORiL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TjEYXIrsCidObmj048jWW%2BoVJQ4%2BW%2BQ78zDeVMCoUbovHK2IeqmXbgey6bYQPO/O&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6Qv1Fp6YKUMYz7SuBf0DIiBXC3iNriwDdTEpMf7dV659YmsUgg4iR/qA3aYOH9js&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gavC2Q6k3oWWwd5AzhJvdkYliFlsuSQvlKHmjgCU8UvL3xgqaanYe9GliZ3%2BIYqC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qCWkTAQkEy5oztNRfit/GoMvrz7CsxbIKsRmB2hW%2B3l5KTNZA1n47H2j6kbi5B07&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lrd/ExvEnueC5Mh/XIxueF%2BTxDEqpXPeuN1ClXISSrii1u0nvRIqoVVdfjLg3t4/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6msZ01NHR%2BjLyTjMz5QPBFUj9I8OMV/XIaw8sJuTdIVFJJhesNOrUOMXge%2Bf0NDn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QhxrAvP7n9B8xZEfAvMxaRQQI0fysaR6DDgcOox%2B5eGr1XzCeP8zXjo5mi9kIuEz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5P3HQqsIocH8cGA5TurQPJZcMbjKpCx1ZQt2rhO3%2BgxmunBkR4lYZtb09iggqjdv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cmnFsx65XRpy%2B3SBXg%2BHNq6sso7y8jpHP8LeL0qsQjpz8KWIE8G4swALu1SMK86X&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YdnPzH5wp%2B2ruIodkalQzlevkSgQTVV1ykw40e8hQaR50EK0w2ME9cJYna5x%2BV3g&


 
 
 

07/15/2015 11:45    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |JUNE 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 12
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191111 49101  Workers Comp Dividend            0           0      16,160.00            .00                    -16,160.00  100.0%*
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,267.00            .00                     -9,267.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       2,839.62         266.60                     -2,839.62  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0      17,623.25       5,047.91                    -17,623.25  100.0%*
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0       1,375.07       1,000.00                     -1,375.07  100.0%*
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000     186,215.36            .00                     38,784.64   82.8%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0           0         150.00            .00                       -150.00  100.0%*
191411 49000  Codes Miscellaneous            0           0         100.00            .00                       -100.00  100.0%*
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,250       1,250       1,458.49         132.49                       -208.49  116.7%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         431.50            .00                       -281.50  287.7%*
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous          800         800       2,041.04         790.00                     -1,241.04  255.1%*
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous            0           0       3,141.03          65.00                     -3,141.03  100.0%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales        8,000       8,000            .00            .00                      8,000.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0       2,070.75         275.88                     -2,070.75  100.0%*
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0           0       1,323.54            .00                     -1,323.54  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      118,000     118,000     165,229.94      45,450.94                    -47,229.94  140.0%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,004.28            .00                     -1,004.28  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      710,000     710,000   1,052,000.00     540,775.27                   -342,000.00  148.2%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,064,200   1,064,200   1,467,563.61     594,888.93                   -403,363.61  137.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,064,200   1,064,200   1,467,563.61     594,888.93                   -403,363.61

 
GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,299,543  55,140,393.31   2,088,151.95                  3,159,149.69   94.6%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=R8GhuueTNsI1addlXUGmx%2BadUVsKRah1UgemLSzCgeY%2BBECPUQBoYKCC2su6zFwM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=c/QYAYVzG48gXjsVMMjx8AAoVjUdM8s4JfxuKDywCNPAmrBmaWfiDSBrCxDLCIby&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zThhAhMF4soY4/iQI0kzhMN6jOby9aYgYCX4E8VMgtRd7WG97voiCzRK%2BN2tpFRN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Qnfq3bBCEiUbPVmTcspCizwKybBL%2BOcHPr5dQvxyPuazJhmBhRTfxvu0RpbBoo7z&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GlTjdEL8wF5Z5xLPADaGKgpkrOd9I7dPqAtp8lXmcKJZwPRZW3EGYqQwZeEtWKgk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bS04jrQUooexLD1SjKr6wKz73IZekMd6VFIf7xQESgo7eyPjhuyg9M/N9tUbr%2BOl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CT0YIHWZaE4efJzZg8jcfBOhIIMKt48ZwcqpztK7xbwGgcxn1SHGF6cLSmruUAuR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZjXAhoQAdTS0QGpVZclobnPYg70otEzB50NTNxMwYN0bDMQgvdQ5v8ndTsGyQFAc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FhFw5wblJhPV71w9iUiSJFUZ7FUwFkwVS7bLJ/Rw7%2BO70cs04zErHGSzIzH5mind&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=L98dnMtxqcZO1vLKWiqrdJqZ0L2KKOUCof0H1N/zQPGpq8Yfwtz6XynrKY1rWz1e&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mZL7sFFgvJvP8nGwErFkyVHy9SBi%2BKK491U9XA4jiD3yo1CnH8mzIIzkeladgd6i&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IHtFMHK62x8WXclc3Jmbpmrhgp8zB6uwpV0d/Xv8ezLSmqWNm65EmArHf%2Bb7Kw2v&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fQXcBL/tr66j3INmjAWsndgZv8AjI3EdsBhl%2BUs13ShOhkRBRfxThtIVkgimkOl%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1Yrq8q5wzOqKtnfjAi/ird5rJTBH%2BiFpDFS%2BmuzfBxD%2By4eJYZBT7HrrWZ3XDna/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2QdtN5GhihjZ9rmgQLg4TdHDaRimX36QjkxoZS5mHTSYsd7wRjSsvVexjULqwKE%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vyvU0vMH%2BJDmoNek4gqfF3GRdrixPoI9jkZMjmhmID5wTVIuKqFv9L3F1qJV/0p1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JspbgJtGG4p%2BLyT%2BBhn2F0sFGb0OhJkHCp9wt3ZLxN/EFQitEOpmZilLePiaj61T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wuo2ZGiBI5zekvBDA6OshF%2BLepn7g8zOWIOpT9j5SkSzOafhNUtPM6ah0lvns079&


 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

July 15, 2015 
 
 

To:   Town Council 
From:    Bridger Tomlin, Bowdoin Fellow  
Subject: Kate Furbish Trail Naming: Town Council Update 
    

As part of my Bowdoin summer fellowship for the Town of Brunswick’s 
Planning office, I am heading up a trail naming project on the Kate Furbish Preserve; a 
parcel within Brunswick Landing. The first parcel comprising the largest portion of the 
preserve was acquired in 2011 and named in 2013. When the preserve was named there 
was discussion at the Town Council meeting on June 17, 2013 that there would be 
additional opportunities to recognize families who had previously resided on the property 
prior to its establishment as the Brunswick Naval Air Station when it came time to 
consider naming the future trails. As a result, this trail naming project is being conducted 
with the intent to name various segments after the people and places that were a part of 
the community, called Merriconeag, which subsisted in the area from the 1700s until the 
time of the Brunswick Naval Air Station expansion in 1953.  

In order to ascertain the most comprehensive and diverse perspective on the 
Merriconeag Community, what life was like there, and what families played an important 
role in the area, I have delved into a variety of resources. The following people and 
documentation have been instrumental in supplying background on the parcel and 
considerable historical information on the community and its resident’s lives: 

• Fred Koerber: Local Historian 

• Barbara Desmarias: Local Historian 

• Richard Snow: Local Historian 

• Tim Tetu: Land abutter and history aficionado 

• Julie Isbill: NPS Rivers, Trails, and Conservation Assistant.  

• The Pejepscot Historical Society 

• Helene Bisson: Lived in the Merriconeag Community 

 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 
INCORPORATED 1739 

 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND 

DEVELOPMENT 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 
 

 
 

 

BRIDGER G. TOMLIN PHONE: 207-725-6660 
BOWDOIN FELLOW TO PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT EMAIL:bfellow@brunswickme.org 



• B Dubois: Lived in the Merriconeag Community 

• New Meadows and Gatchell Cemetery: Cemeteries for the Merriconeag 
Community  

• RTOS Kate Furbish Preserve  Management plan 

• BNAS Environmental Impact Statement 

• Historical maps, newspaper articles, photographs, and diaries.  

• Tax and legal documentation 

• Brunswick Naval Air Station (BNAS) Reports 
 

A planning committee comprised of myself and four Brunswick High School 
students are ready to begin planning trail recommendations. The high school students, all 
rising seniors include Mae Wilson, Noah Imperato, Julia Casey, and Ben Farrell. This 
committee, which has been meeting weekly as of June 17th, 2015, has been busy looking 
at historical accounts of and information on the Merriconeag community, interviewing 
people who resided in the community, and touring the preserve and the remains of the 
community that was once there. Additionally, the committee has put out press releases 
asking for public input and information from people who lived in the community in The 
Times Record, The Forecaster, The Coastal Journal, The Portland Press Harold, and a 
Brunswick email subscription called the “Brunswick Blast.” A copy of the published 
press release  is attached to the next page. 

On July 16th, 2015, the committee intends to preliminarily narrow down the 
number of potential trail names to fit the number of proposed trails on the Kate Furbish 
Preserve. Criteria under consideration for name selection include: how long did the 
family live in the Merriconeag community, did they make significant contributions to the 
community, and are there unique or interesting stories about the family or community 
supported by objective sources? 

  Additionally, on July 16th, 2015, the committee will look at breaking up the trail 
system into specific segments. With the assistance of local resident and National Parks 
Service Rivers and Trails staff person Julie Isbill, the committee will have considered 
how to break up the trail system into specific segments. The committee requests to 
present a list of potential trail names and trail design of the Kate Furbish Preserve to the 
council during the August 3rd meeting. The committee would appreciate and welcome 
public comment and input on the process of trail naming and design. Feel free to contact 
me, Bridger at bfellow@brunswickme.org or 207-725-6660 EXT. 4022. I will be at the 
Town Council meeting on July 20th, 2015 to address any questions and can speak about 
the trail naming.  

 

mailto:bfellow@brunswickme.org


Press Release: Published on 07/02/2015 in The Times Record, The Forecaster, The 
Coastal Journal, and The Portland Press Harold. Sent on 06/24/2015.  

Project seeks to name Kate Furbish Trails 

Brunswick Maine-The Town of Brunswick is moving forward with the naming of trails 
on the Kate Furbish Preserve. The preserve lays to the south of Merriconeag road by 
Mere Brook Golf Course between Harpswell and Princes Point roads. The names of the 
trails aim to commemorate and honor the families and people who lived in the area where 
the preserve and Brunswick Landing are now. This area, once the Merriconeag or Middle 
Bay community, was home to families dating back to the late 1700s. However, when the 
Brunswick Naval Air Station expanded its operations in1953, the need for land forced the 
Navy to buy up and push out the families and people that lived in the community that 
once connected the Harpswell islands. 

This project aims to document and commemorate the local people and history that took 
place in this now pristine swath of land. The trail naming is headed up by Bridger 
Tomlin, the Town’s Planning and Development Bowdoin Fellow and a group of local 
high school students: Ben Farrell, Noah Imperato, Mae Wilson, and Julia Casey. The 
group hopes to also document local history through the creation of future interpretive 
signage and an online resource or website that chronicles the historical and ecological 
importance of the Kate Furbish Preserve. 

The town is now looking to talk to local residents who have relatives or ancestors that 
lived in the area, have stories or memories to share, opinions on the trail naming, or want 
input on or to help in the naming process. 

Please contact Bridger Tomlin to get involved in the project or to share your thoughts. 

Contact: 

Bridger Tomlin, Bowdoin Fellow for Brunswick Planning and Development 

Work: 207-721-4060; bfellow@brunswickme.org 

 

Press Release: Published on 7/9/2015  in the “Brunswick Blast.”  

Kate Furbish Preserve - Trail Names & Stories 
The Town of Brunswick is naming the trails on the Kate Furbish Preserve. The names of trails will 
commemorate and honor the families and people who lived in the Merriconeag community prior 
to the BNAS. The town is looking to talk to local residents who have stories or memories to share, 
opinions on the trail naming, or want to help in the naming process. Contact Bridger Tomlin: 207-
721-4060 or bfellow@brunswickme.org. 

 

mailto:bfellow@brunswickme.org
mailto:bfellow@brunswickme.org


 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT – F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 July	15,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Nancy	and	Patricia	Drives		
	 	
	
	
On	July	9th	the	Town	opened	four	bids	for	the	storm	drain	work	contemplated	for	Nancy,	Patricia,	and	
Pierce	Drives.		The	low	bid	was	submitted	by,	and	awarded	to,	Crooker	Construction,	LLC.			The	bid	
results	are	attached.		The	storm	drain	work	was	estimated	at	$200,000	and	is	the	first	phase	in	the	
estimated	$580,000	road	reconstruction	project	the	Town	has	voted	to	bond.		The	second	phase	
includes	reconstruction	of	the	base.		The	final	phase	is	paving.		
	
A	preconstruction	meeting	will	be	held	soon	with	construction	expected	to	start	by	mid‐August.		The	
project	is	expected	to	be	completed	next	year.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Cc:		Town	Engineer	
	
	
Attachments	



Bid Opening: July 9, 2015 Print Date: July 9, 2015
Bidder Total Bid

Crooker Construction, LLC 194,069.00     $                      

Copp Excavating, Inc. 276,199.00     $                       

Ray Labbe & Sons, Inc. 305,036.00     $                       

Callahan Construction, LLC 338,777.00     $                       

 Enterprise Trenchless Technologies, Inc. No Bid         

All bidders included 5% Bid Security and 
acknowledged 2 Addendums

Bid Tab
Storm Drain Replacement & Extension 

Nancy Drive and River Road

Town of Brunswick
Contract No. 2015-11



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - G 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 July	15,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Pine	Street	Bicycle	and	Pedestrian	
	 Access	to	Brunswick	Landing		
	 	
	
	
As	you	may	recall,	the	Town	Council	voted	in	April	2015	to	appropriate	$60,000	from	Recreation	
Impact	fees	to	fund	the	construction	of	a	bicycle	and	pedestrian	access	from	the	terminus	of	Pine	
Street	to	the	Perimeter	Road	on	Brunswick	Landing.		We	expect	work	will	begin	during	the	week	of	
July	20th	with	modifications	to	the	fencing.		Public	Works	crews	are	expected	to	be	on	site	the	week	of	
July	27th	to	begin	the	actual	construction	of	the	path.		Final	paving	has	not	yet	been	scheduled	but	the	
entire	project	is	expected	to	be	complete	by	September.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Cc:		Town	Engineer	
	
	



 
 

 
ITEM MANAGER’S REPORT 
- H 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 80 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Memorandum 

To: TM Eldridge 

From: Cmdr. Waltz 

Re: Proposed Changes to Parking Ordinance 

Date: June 25, 2015 

 

 Attached is a proposed revision of our parking ordinance to make a number of changes 

requested by town staff and/or the public.  The requested changes are as follows:  

1. Union Street Long Term Lot.  It was observed over the course of the winter that the lot was 

being significantly used as a long term lot by people not utilizing the train or bus.  This proposed change 

would limit the use to passengers of the train or bus.  I left the method of proof of train/bus use up to 

the Chief as we’ll probably have to try a number of methods and see what works best.  We’ll probably 

try the following methods to start with: 

a. Leave a photocopy of departing and return train or bus tickets on dashboard; 

b. An online form which can be filled out on the PD website and printed out and placed on 

dashboard; 

c. A form which can be picked up at the visitor’s center and placed on dashboard. 

 

2. Town Hall Lot Limits.  The first three spaces in 

each row of the portion of the lot used by Town Hall will 

have a 30 minute time limit to make it easier for citizens 

trying to find a spot to get a permit, register a car, etc.  

Additionally, to encourage turnover, overnight parking 

will be prohibited in the Town’s portion of the parking 

lot. 

 

3. Barrows Drive at Coffin School.  This winter the 

School bus garage said they were having a lot of difficulty 

getting buses out of Coffin School and on to Barrows 

Drive because parents were lined up on both sides of the 

street to pick up children.  While cars parked on both 

sides and two-way traffic is a problem at any time of the year in this area, it became untenable with the 

snow banks.  The Chief issued a temporary emergency proclamation which has worked well.  We would 

now like to make the prohibition permanent.  An added benefit of the prohibition on parking for the 

length of the Coffin School property as requested is that there’s less risk of a child getting hit if they run 

out into the street (because of increased visibility without the parked cars). 

Figure 1 - Proposed 30 Minute Spaces at Town Hall 



 

4. No Parking Section in area of Federal 

Street RR Bridge.  While historically no one parks 

there, Public Works Director Foster noticed that 

there is nothing actually prohibiting someone 

from parking on the east side of Federal Street in 

the area of the railroad bridge.  This change 

would prohibit parking from the area where the 

road narrows just south of the bridge and 

continue to the driveway of the former Harriet 

Beecher Stowe House. 

 

5. Corner of McLellan ST and Harpswell 

RD.  People normally park only on the north side 

of McLellan Street near the intersection with 

Harpswell Road.  However, at times people park 

on both sides of McLellan Street in this area and 

we get complaints because the corner does not 

have good visibility when turning on to McLellan 

Street from the south.  The proposed change 

would ban parking on the south side of the 

street next to the commercial building.  The 

owner actually already has a private “No 

Parking” sign attached to the eastern end of the 

building.  

 

6.  Storer Road Intersection with Old Bath Road.  Public works has requested no parking in this 

area, again due to it being a narrow road and difficult visibility seeing Old Bath Road traffic when cars 

are parked on Storer Road in this area. 

 

7. Page Street.    As part of the overnight 

parking debate last winter it was discovered 

that there were two no parking zones painted 

on the street which we not in our ordinance.  

They were removed this spring.  The owners of  

2 Page Street and 3 Page Street have requested 

the one be “re-instated” and made legal in the 

area of their residences.  The rationale is that 

the driveway at 3 Page St. is perpendicular and 

it is difficult to get a car out when vehicles are 

parked opposite it.   Figure 4 -Former yellow curb in area no parking requested on Page 
Street 

Figure 2  Federal Street RR Bridge 

Figure 3 McLellan Street at Harpswell RD 



  

** Proposed Amendments are Highlighted** 

 

  Chapter 15 
 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES* 
__________  

* Cross References: Animals, Ch. 4; dogs, § 4-26 et seq.; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 7; housing, Ch. 8; vehicles for hire, 

§ 10-96 et seq.; solid waste, Ch. 13; streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14; zoning and subdivision of land, App. A; traffic 

impact analysis required in certain circumstances, App. A, § 409.3, L; subdivision regulations, App. A, § 501 et seq. 
__________  

 
 Art. I. In General, §§ 15-1--15-25 

 
 Art. II. Traffic-Control Devices, §§ 15-26--15-45 

 
 Art. III. Specific Street Regulations, §§ 15-46--15-70 

 
 Art. IV. Stopping, Standing, Parking, §§ 15-71--15-100 

 
 Art. V. Rules for Operation of Vehicles, §§ 15-101--15-120 

 
 Art. VI. Pedestrians, §§ 15-121--15-140 

 
 Art. VII. Bicycles and Skateboards, §§ 15-141--15-144 

 

. 

  ARTICLE IV. 
 

STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING* 
__________  

* Cross References: Streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14. 

__________  

 

Sec. 15-73. Overnight parking restricted. 
 

(a) … 

 

 (l)  A person shall not park a vehicle in the Long Term Parking lot located at 86 Union Street,   

between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. unless the vehicle has been parked in connection with the operator’s 

utilization of train or bus service.  The vehicle may only park in the Long Term Parking for the duration of the 

operator’s out-of-town trip on the train or bus.  Proof of train or bus service utilization may be documented in a 

manner proscribed by the Chief of Police.   

 

 (m) A person shall not park a vehicle in the Town Hall parking lot located at 85 Union Street, between 

the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.  This prohibition shall not apply to the leased portion of the parking lot.  

… 

 

 



Sec. 15-74. No-parking areas.  
 

The following areas are designated as no-parking areas:  

 … 

 

 Barrows Drive, west side, commencing at Columbia Avenue and extending south six hundred and 

ninety-six (696) feet, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

 … 

 

 Federal Street, east side, commencing 735 feet north of the intersection with Bath Road and extending 

north for four hundred and forty (440) feet.  

 …. 

 

 McLellan Street, south side, commencing at the intersection with Harpswell Road and extending east one 

hundred and forty-five (145) feet. 

 …. 

 

Page Street, north side commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly thirty-six (36) feet.  

 

Page Street, north side commencing one hundred and eighty-seven (187) feet west of Maine Street and 

extending westerly twenty-four (24) feet.  

 

Page Street, north side, commencing at Spring Street, and extending easterly forty (40) feet.  

 

Page Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly to Union Street.  

 

 … 

 

 Storer Road, both sides, commencing at Old Bath Road and extending northerly four hundred and twenty 

(420) feet; 

 

Sec. 15-76. Restricted on-street parking areas. 
(a) … 

 

(e)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a person shall not park a vehicle for more 

than thirty (30) consecutive minutes in the following signed designated zones: … 

 

Maine Street, east side west side, the two northernmost parking spaces (excluding any spaces which 

designated as disability parking spaces) on each block between Gilman Avenue and Town Hall Place; 

 

Maine Street, west side east side, the two southernmost parking spaces (excluding any spaces which 

designated as disability parking spaces) on each block between School Street and Mason Street; 

 

Union Street, Town Hall parking lot located at 85 Union Street, the three westernmost spaces in each 

of the two northernmost rows, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

 



 
 

 
ITEM 81 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



O:\Word\Ordinances\Code Supplement 28 starting June 2015\Draft Amendment to Chapter 10 Regarding Use of Sidewalks for food 
vendors.docx 

Draft Amendment to Chapter 10 Regarding Use of Sidewalks for food 
vendors 

 

Chapter 10 LICENSES AND BUSINESS REGULATIONS [1]  
ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

ARTICLE II. - LICENSES, GENERALLY  

 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES, GENERALLY 
Sec. 10-26. Required; fees. 

Sec. 10-27. Qualifications. 

Sec. 10-28. Penalties. 

Secs. 10-29—10-45. Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 10-26. Required; fees. 

(a) A person or organization may not engage in any of the businesses or occupations listed below 
without first obtaining a license from the town according to the provisions stated below. In addition, 
the applicant is responsible for compliance with all pertinent town ordinances and state laws. Except 
as otherwise stated, the license shall expire on June 30, annually.  

(b) The fees indicated below include a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) application fee which is nonrefundable 
if the license in not approved. Unless otherwise designated, the initial license shall be assessed on a 
semi-annual basis . There will be a late fee assessed to licenses that have expired in the amount of 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for licenses with fees higher than fifty dollars ($50.00), and in the amount 
of ten dollars ($10.00) for licenses with fees fifty dollars ($50.00) or less. The fine will double after the 
license has been expired for more than thirty (30) days. ….  

 (6) Sellers of prepared food on public way. The town council may, upon finding that the public 
convenience so requires and that the applicant is a reputable person, authorize the issuance of 
a license to sell prepared food on a public way.  

a. The fee for a license for sellers of prepared food on a public way shall be a twenty-five 
dollar ($25.00) application fee. The fee for a license for sellers of prepared food on a public 
way located at the Mall on Maine Street shall be fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00); this 
license cannot be prorated. The fee for licenses for sellers of prepared food on a public 
way at the Farmer's Market located at the mall on Maine Street shall be three thousand 
dollars ($3,000.00) (for Tuesdays and Fridays). All fees for licenses for sellers of prepared 
food on a public way shall be payable annually, in advance, and the license shall expire on 
the date of the first council meeting in March. Applications will be considered by the town 
council at the first council meeting in March and applications must be filed with the town 
clerk seven (7) days prior to this meeting. Additional applications may be filed whenever 
less than the maximum number of licenses have been issued and are in effect.  



O:\Word\Ordinances\Code Supplement 28 starting June 2015\Draft Amendment to Chapter 10 Regarding Use of Sidewalks for food 
vendors.docx 

b. The town council may authorize the issuance of a license for a single day or single event 
on a public way. The fee for a single day license shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00) and 
for a single event license shall be fifty dollars ($50.00) up to three (3) days. The provisions 
of subsection c.5. below shall not apply to single day or single event licenses.  

c. In determining whether or not to issue a license, the council shall consider the following: 

1. The number and proximity of licenses previously granted for the general area sought 
to be served by the applicant.  

2. The nature, size, appearance and condition of the vehicle or food service device to be 
used by the applicant. A plan or picture shall be provided.  

3. The impact of the proposed use, including the location of chairs, tables, and service 
areas on public travel and the adjacent neighborhood. A plan for the use of the public 
way shall be provided.  

4. The character and ability of the applicant. 

5. Licenses to sell prepared food on the town mall shall be approved for no more than 
four (4) vendors annually, not including the Brunswick Farmers' Market.  

d. Each license shall contain the following conditions: 

1. Operations of the licenses shall be confined to those hours and parts of public ways 
designated in the license. Because of the public way location, the town council may 
choose to further restrict the hours of operation. No equipment may remain on the 
mall or public way when the vendor is not open for business, except as approved by 
the director of parks and recreation. Such approval shall allow equipment to remain on 
the mall overnight when the following day's activity is expected to make vendor arrival 
unduly difficult. Such approvals shall not exceed six (6) times per year.  

2. The licensee shall keep and maintain the area adjacent to its activities free of litter 
and debris.  

3.. The licensee shall indemnify the town against and hold the town harmless from any 
expense or liability in any way arising out of or connected to activity under the license.  

e. The council may, in its discretion, as a further condition of the license, require the licensee 
to provide proof of insurance in appropriate amounts with respect to the risks referred to in 
d.3. above, and impose such conditions, not inconsistent with this article, as it deems 
reasonable and necessary. Current limits of insurance are as follows: General liability, 
including product coverage, with a single aggregate limit of five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000.00) for bodily injury, and a one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) limit for 
property damage.  

f. Any license issued hereunder may be revoked for reasonable cause at any time by the 
council.  

g. Each mall vendor shall also obtain a victualer's license. 

h. In cases of seating on public ways, there will be a requirement that the applicant maintains 
a minimum unobstructed paved pedestrian walkway of 72 inches with a minimum vertical 
clearance of 8 feet.  When completing an application, the applicant will provide a detailed 
diagram of the proposed seating and final approval will be based on a favorable inspection 
by the Codes Officer to ensure this requirement is met.  This requirement must be 
maintained for the full-time the license is in effect or the license may be subject to being 
revoked by the Town Council. 

 

 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 July	15,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Sidewalk	Dining		
	 	
	
	
At	the	July	6th	Town	Council	meeting	we	proposed	amendments	to	Chapter	10	“Licenses	and	Business	
Regulations”	of	the	Municipal	Code.		Those	amendments	would	have	required	sellers	of	prepared	food	
on	a	public	way	to	maintain	a	sixty	inch	pedestrian	walkway	when	placing	outdoor	seating	on	the	
sidewalk.		The	Council	amended	the	proposal	to	require	a	seventy‐two	inch	minimum	and	asked	that	
staff	provide	information	on	accessibility	requirements.	
	
Attached	are	pages	from	Chapter	R3:	Technical	Requirements	‐	United	States	Access	Board.		These	
requirements	call	for	a	minimum	sixty	inch	passing	zone	on	sidewalks.		Also	attached	is	a	page	from	
the	guidelines	prepared	by	the	Federal	Highway	Administration.		These	guidelines	also	suggest	a	
minimum	sixty	inch	passing	zone.	
	
The	Council	also	requested	that	we	provide	information	about	the	existing	license	holders	and	how	
much	sidewalk	space	exists	in	front	of	their	establishments.		The	Town	Clerk	will	provide	that	
information	under	separate	cover	by	Friday	afternoon.	
	
In	addition	to	the	normal	required	public	notice	for	ordinance	amendments,	notification	of	the	
proposed	amendments	has	been	provided	to	current	license	holders,	the	Brunswick	Downtown	
Association	(BDA)	and	others	identified	by	the	Town	Clerk’s	office.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Attachments	



1331 F Street NW, Suite 1000
Washington, DC 20004-1111

Voice: (202) 272-0080 or (800) 872
TTY: (202) 272-0082 or (800) 993-
Fax: (202) 272-0081

United States Access Board
Partner Sites

DISABILITY.GO

USA.GOV

REGULATIONS

FEDERALREGI

Advisory R302.3 Continuous Width. The continuous clear width
requirements in R302.3 apply to sidewalks and other pedestrian circulation
paths, pedestrian street crossings and at-grade rail crossings, and
pedestrian overpasses and underpasses and similar structures (see
R302.2). Clear width requirements are contained in R304.5.1 for curb
ramps and blended transitions, and in R407.4 for ramps. Where sidewalks
are wider than 1.2 m (4.0 ft), only a portion of the sidewalk is required to
comply with the requirements in R302.3 through R302.7. Additional
maneuvering space should be provided at turns or changes in direction,
transit stops, recesses and alcoves, building entrances, and along curved or
angled routes, particularly where the grade exceeds 5 percent. R210
prohibits street furniture and other objects from reducing the minimum
clear width of pedestrian access routes.

R302.3.1 Medians and Pedestrian Refuge Islands. The clear width of
pedestrian access routes within medians and pedestrian refuge islands shall
be 1.5 m (5.0 ft) minimum.

R302.4 Passing Spaces. Where the clear width of pedestrian access
routes is less than 1.5 m (5.0 ft), passing spaces shall be provided at
intervals of 61 m (200.0 ft) maximum. Passing spaces shall be 1.5 m (5.0
ft) minimum by 1.5 m (5.0 ft) minimum. Passing spaces are permitted to
overlap pedestrian access routes.

Figure R302.4 Passing Spaces

Chapter R3: Technical Requirements - United States Access Board http://www.access-board.gov/guidelines-and-standards/streets-sidewalks...

2 of 22 7/8/2015 10:05 AM



ement

rmance

mation

R302.5 Grade. Except as provided in R302.5.1, where pedestrian access
routes are contained within a street or highway right-of-way, the grade of
pedestrian access routes shall not exceed the general grade established for
the adjacent street or highway. Where pedestrian access routes are not
contained within a street or highway right-of-way, the grade of pedestrian
access routes shall be 5 percent maximum.

Advisory R302.5 Grade. The grade requirements in R302.5 apply to
sidewalks and other pedestrian circulation paths, pedestrian street crossings
and at-grade rail crossings, and pedestrian overpasses and underpasses
and similar structures (see R302.2). The grade of the pedestrian access
route is measured parallel to the direction of pedestrian travel. Running
slope requirements are contained in R304.2.2 for perpendicular curb ramps,
in R304.3.2 for parallel curb ramps, in R304.4.1 for blended transitions, and
in R407.2 for ramps.

R302.5.1 Pedestrian Street Crossings. Where pedestrian access routes
are contained within pedestrian street crossings, the grade of the pedestrian
access route shall be 5 percent maximum.

R302.6 Cross Slope. Except as provided in R302.6.1 and R302.6.2, the
cross slope of pedestrian access routes shall be 2 percent maximum.

Advisory R302.6 Cross Slope. The cross slope requirements in R302.6
apply to sidewalks and other pedestrian circulation paths, pedestrian street
crossings and at-grade rail crossings, and pedestrian overpasses and
underpasses and similar structures (see R302.2). The cross slope of the
pedestrian access route is measured perpendicular to the direction of
pedestrian travel. Cross slope requirements are contained in R304.5.3 for
curb ramps and blended transitions, and in R407.3 for ramps.

R302.6.1 Pedestrian Street Crossings Without Yield or Stop Control.
Where pedestrian access routes are contained within pedestrian street
crossings without yield or stop control, the cross slope of the pedestrian
access route shall be 5 percent maximum.

Advisory R302.6.1 Pedestrian Street Crossings Without Yield or Stop
Control. Pedestrian street crossings without yield or stop control are
crossings where there is no yield or stop sign, or where there is a traffic

Chapter R3: Technical Requirements - United States Access Board http://www.access-board.gov/guidelines-and-standards/streets-sidewalks...

3 of 22 7/8/2015 10:05 AM





1 
 

Revised Report (07/20/15) on Outdoor seating on Maine Street sidewalks 
July 17, 2015 

 
As requested, staff took pictures and measured spacing on the sidewalks.  This was a quick survey to provide the 
Council with an idea of what area is left on the sidewalks for pedestrians to pass.  It will require more review by 
the Codes Officer for those that are close to the proposed limits since it is based on one measurement, and the 
Codes Officer would be the final say.  We did send out both emails and letters to restaurant owners letting them 
know this would be done, while notifying them of the upcoming public hearing on the proposed change in the 
ordinance.   
 
We have included those restaurants that are required to get a permit from the Town as they are on public property, 
and those who own in front of their buildings and would not be affected by the change.  
 
The following are the categories of measurements: 

a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 
b) How much space there is between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 
 
Those requiring permits: 
 
1) Gelato Fiasco, 74 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 46 to 60 inches depending on location of chairs 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 93 inches to tree pit 
 
2) Frosty’s Donuts, 54 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 27 inches  
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 189 inches  



2 
 

3) Shere Punjab, 46 Maine Street 

     
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 81 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 58 to 59 inches to light post; 100 to 103 first section and 91 to second 
section to end of sidewalk  

 
4) Little Saigon, 44 Maine Street 

  
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 81 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 59 inches to tree pit; 91 inches to end of sidewalk 
 
5) Great Impasta, 42 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 148 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 59 to 61 inches to road in narrowest spot up to 130 inches wide



3 
 

6) Flipside, 111 Maine Street 

  
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 72 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 73 inches to 1st tree pit; 85 inches to 2nd tree pit; 65 inches to light post 
 
Those who are not required to get permit: 
 
1) Big Top Deli, 70 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass?  18 inches in one section to 60 inches in furthest  
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.?  113 inches to tree pit; 200 inches to end of sidewalk 
 
2) Little Dog, 87 Maine Street 

  
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 80 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.?  117 inches to trash can; 77 inches to tree pit 



4 
 

 
3) Enoteca Athena, 97 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 77 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 60 to 62 inches to tree pit; 70 inches to bench; 170 inches to end of 
sidewalk 

 
4) Bombay Mahal, 99 Maine Street 

   
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 60 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.?  97 inches to light post; 91 inches to bike rack; 96 inches to tree pit (The 
seating begins closer to bike rack section of the tree pit so wider measurement than Enoteca) 

  



5 
 

 
5) Joshua’s Restaurant, 123 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 126 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 63 inches to 1st tree pit ; 113 inches to light post; 72 inches to 2nd tree pit; 
83 inches to bike rack 

 
6) Broadway Deli, 142 Maine Street 

   
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass?  43 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 83 to 90 inches to trash can; 64 inches to tree pit; 139 to the end of 
sidewalk. 

  



6 
 

 
7) Local, 148 Maine Street 

   
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass?  41 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 63 inches to lamp; 150 inches to end of sidewalk 
 
8) Lemongrass, 212 Maine Street 

 
a) How wide an area does the seating encompass? 32 inches 
b) How much space is there between the seating and the end of the sidewalk and/or any obstruction such as a 

tree, post lamp, trash can, etc.? 72 inches to end of sidewalk 



 
 

 
ITEM 82 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



7/20/2015 



Answers to questions from the June 15th meeting 
 

• Should Brunswick partner with other towns? 
 - Yes, but the RFP should not require it 

• Should Solarize Brunswick allow any qualified installer to 
participate rather than selecting a single winning bid? 

 - No, open participation would entail an RFQ model. We want to hear directly from 
the installers what their creative solutions are, rather then ask them to bid on a set of 
prepared requirements. 

• Does the Town monitor installations? 
 - No, only the usual codes enforcement activities apply 

 

7/20/2015 



Motivation – to help residents and businesses 
• Reduce their carbon footprint 
 - 40% of Maine’s standard offer electricity is generated by burning natural gas 

 - A typical 4.8kW system can offset >3000lb CO2 per year by avoiding natural gas 
combustion 

• Save money and increase property value 
 - A typical 4.8kW system can pay for itself ~13 years, while panels continue to 

produce at peak output for 25+ years 

 - studies have shown potential for increased property value of homes with solar PV 

• Take advantage of the Residential Renewable Energy Tax Credit 
 - the 30% credit is set to expire at the end of 2016 

7/20/2015 



Timeline 
• Solarize Brunswick goes online   7/27/2015 
 - RFP released; Question and Answer period begins 

• Bids are due     9/8/2015 
 - Selection Committee is identified, begins evaluating bids 

• Winning bidder selected    9/28/2015 
 - Installer will conduct a launch event and establish a deadline for signups 

• Installations     Q4/2015 
 - Q4 2015 and into 2016 

• Wrap-up and report back to TC   Q2/2016 

 

 

7/20/2015 



7/20/2015 

Activity Town Staff Town Committees Partner Installer  
Start up Review RFP 

(Town Attorney) 
R&S Committee: write RFP,  appoint 
Selection Committee, collect leads. 

  

Installer 
Selection 

Distribute RFP Selection Committee: evaluate bids, 
interview finalists, select winning bid. 

Respond to RFP, participate in Q&A and 
interviews. 

Outreach   R&S Committee: develop internal 
website, create and distribute material 
on the program. 

Develop external website. 
Create and distribute material on the 
program. 

Enrollment   R&S Committee: share database of 
enrollees with Partner Installer. 

Maintain database of enrollees. 

Installations Permitting, 
inspection (Codes 
Enforcement staff) 

  Conduct site assessments. 
Install systems. 

Evaluation Prepare Report R&S Committee: solicit information 
from citizens and installer concerning 
program strengths and weaknesses. 

Provide information on program 
strengths and weaknesses. 

Responsibilities 



A Solarize Program for Brunswick 

 

Introduction - Solarize programs are designed to help residents overcome the financial 

and logistical barriers to installing solar power systems on their homes. They accomplish 
this by allowing pre-selected solar installation companies to offer group discounts. An 
aggressive outreach and education effort, coupled with a tight deadline for committing to 
the program, typically produces a substantial number of motivated potential customers. A 
second purpose of the program is to increase the visibility of rooftop solar in the 
community, with the result that even those companies not participating in the initial 
effort can benefit from higher demand for their services. Thus, a successful Solarize 
program can produce employment and other economic benefits to the wider community. 

Why rooftop solar? - The benefit of rooftop solar to homeowners is obvious – greatly 

reduced electric bills – but there are societal advantages as well. Most electricity is 
generated in large, centralized power plants, located many miles from the homes, stores, 
offices, and factories in which it is used. According to the Edison Electric Institute, an 
association of investor-owned public utilities, its members will spend more than $64 
Billion dollars through 2016 on construction and maintenance of the transmission 
infrastructure required to move this electricity from each Point A to its many Points B. In 
addition, the U.S. Energy Information Administration reports that about 7 percent of all 
electricity generated in these centralized plants is lost during transmission. Both of these 
costs – those associated with infrastructure and those associated with the generation of 
electricity that never makes it to end users – are borne by the general public in the form 
of higher electric bills. Finally, although an increasing percentage of Maine’s electricity is 
generated using renewables, fossil fuels continue to account for roughly 40% of Maine’s 
electricity. The advantages of solar over fossil fuels with regard to greenhouse gas 
emissions and other forms of air pollution are well documented. 

Experience Elsewhere - The first Solarize program was launched in 2009 in a Portland, 

Oregon neighborhood. Within six months of starting their campaign, the program had 
signed up more than 300 residents and installed solar on 130 homes. These installations 
added 350 kilowatts of new photovoltaic capacity and created 18 professional-wage jobs 
for site assessors, engineers, project managers, journeyman electricians, and roofers. As a 
result of this success, other neighborhoods in the city adopted similar programs which 
produced 400 additional installations in 2010. Since then, the concept has spread across 
the country, with a new program in Freeport, ME, as well as several others throughout 
New England. Approximately 40 contracts  for rooftop solar in Freeport have been signed 
in the program’s first two months. In the Upper Valley region of New Hampshire and 



Vermont, 301 contracts were signed during the program’s first two rounds, with the Town 
of Hanover leading the way with 62. A program serving two Rhode Island towns - Tiverton 
and Little Compton - resulted in installation of 55 new systems. The programs in 
Massachusetts and Connecticut were coordinated at the state level, with participation by 
50 to 60 towns in each state. Solarize Connecticut has resulted in the installation of over 
2,000 rooftop systems, while in Massachusetts the figure is 2,400 systems. 
 

Solarize Brunswick - A Solarize program in Brunswick would involve a partnership 

between the Town, the Recycling & Sustainability (R&S) Committee, and one or more 
solar installation companies. The Town’s role would be to issue a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) to qualified companies, provide general oversight to program activities, and serve as 
a single point of contact for inquiries from interested citizens. Also, involvement by the 
Town would lend a sense of legitimacy to the program. The R&S Committee would 
perform outreach to promote the program. The Town and Committee would also appoint 
a committee to review bids received from the solar installation companies and select a 
winning bidder. The solar installation companies would respond to the RFP, offering a 
tiered pricing plan under which the costs for individual projects would drop as the number 
of residents participating increases. The winning bidder would be given contact 
information, primarily e-mail addresses, for interested residents and would conduct all 
follow-up activities with them. Companies can either bid on their own or form 
consortiums to bid collectively. 

The following steps would be involved in a “Solarize Brunswick” program: 

● The R&S Committee begins outreach activities to inform the public and gather emails 
of interested residents and small businesses. 

● The Town issues a RFP to solar installation companies interested in offering 
competitive tiered pricing for a direct-ownership model for solar PV. 

● A partner installer is selected to participate in the program. 
● The partner installer takes the lead on outreach activities, initiates contact with 

interested residents to provide additional information and, if appropriate, schedules 
site assessments.  

● If the site assessment indicates that a solar installation is appropriate, the partner 
installer submits a bid to the resident. 

● The partner installer executes the contract with the resident to install the solar PV 
system. The Town is not involved in installation contracts. 

 

The following table summarizes the responsibilities of various players. 



Program Activity Town staff Recycling & Sustainability 
Committee (R&S) 

Partner Installer  

Start up Review/approve RFP 
(Town Attorney) 
 
 

Write RFP. Recruit 
volunteers for outreach 
and Selection Committee 
Collect email addresses of 
potential customers. 

 

Installer Selection Distribute RFP 
(Town Staff) 

Evaluate proposals and 
recommend winner or 
finalists to be interviewed. 
Interview finalists and 
recommend winner. 

Respond to RFP. 
Participate in Q&A and 
Selection Committee 
interviews. 

Outreach  
 

Develop internal website. 
Create and distribute 
informational material on 
the program. 

Develop external 
website. 
Create and distribute 
informational material on 
the program. 

Enrollment  Share database of 
enrollees with Partner 
Installer. 

Maintain database of 
enrollees. 

Installations Permitting, 
inspection (Codes 
enforcement staff) 

 Conduct site 
assessments. 
Install systems 

Evaluation Prepare report with 
input from R&S 
committee, citizens, 
and partner 
installers. 
(Town Staff) 

Solicit information from 
citizens and installer 
concerning program 
strengths and weaknesses. 

Provide information on 
program strengths and 
weaknesses. 

 

 



 
 

Request for Proposals from Solar Photovoltaic Installers 

 

This Request for Proposals (RFP) is also available at www.solarizebrunswick.org. 
 
The Town of Brunswick, Maine requests proposals from solar photovoltaic (PV) installers for 
solar PV installations in the Solarize Brunswick program. 
 
The Town is collecting names and email addresses of Brunswick residents interested in learning 
more about solar and how a bulk purchase can bring the cost of installation down. 
 
Solarize Brunswick establishes a bidding process whereby a “Partner Installer” is selected for 
the duration of the program. All Brunswick resident and commercial leads will be forwarded to 
the Partner Installer. 
 

Bidding opens 7/27/2015. Questions regarding this RFP must be emailed to Linda Smith, 

lsmith@brunswickme.org, no later than 8/17/2015 . Responses will be posted at 1

www.solarizebrunswick.org by 8/21/2015. Completed bids must be emailed as a PDF to 

lsmith@brunswickme.org no later than 9/8/2015. 
 

  

1  at the Close of Business (COB). Unless otherwise noted, all deliverables are due on or before the indicated due date, 
at a time no later than COB: 4:30PM, EST. 

1 

 

http://www.solarizebrunswick.org/
mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org
http://www.solarizebrunswick.org/
mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org


 

Table of Contents 

 

Program Summary 

Definitions 

SECTION ONE – Program Overview 

A. Program Goals 

B. The Solarize Brunswick Process 

C. Timeline 

D. Detailed Partner Installer Commitment 

SECTION TWO – Application Process 

A. Eligible Applicants 

B. Application Deadline 

C. In-Person Interviews 

D. Questions and Contact Information 

E. Guidelines for Bidding as a Consortium 

F. Necessary Forms 

SECTION THREE – Evaluation Criteria 

SECTION FOUR – Forms 

Form A – Installer Contact Information 

Form B – Company Profile 

Form C – Core Solarize Proposal 

Form D – Equipment and Pricing Proposal 

 

 
 

2 

 



 

 

Program Summary 
 
 

Solarize Brunswick aims to make solar PV energy more affordable to Brunswick residents and 
commercial establishments. The Town seeks bids which provide competitive tiered pricing for a 
direct-ownership model for solar PV installations at private residences and commercial 
establishments. 
 
The Town also encourages bids that include support for residences and commercial 
establishments that participate in a Community Solar Farm (CSF); however, bidders are not 
required to support CSFs in their bids. 
 
The Town’s role is to bring property owners interested in investing in solar power together and 
to identify a Partner Installer to get the job done at a lower cost to residents. The Town will not 
provide financial assistance or other financial incentive for participation. 
 
A consortium consisting of more than one installer may bid collectively, as long as the members 
take responsibility for managing the consortium and maintaining a simple message and point of 
contact for residents and commercial establishments. 
 
Relevant experience, quality and value of services and equipment, capacity for implementation 
of the program, and proposed pricing will be factors in the selection process. 
 
Solarize Brunswick is inspired by a similar program in Freeport, Maine, as well as programs in 
New Hampshire, Massachusetts and Connecticut. 
 
  

3 

 



 

Definitions 
 
Solarize Brunswick, or the Program: the Solarize Brunswick program 
The Town: the town of Brunswick, Maine 
Selection Committee: a committee established by the Town to evaluate bids and select from 

among them a single bid, identifying the Partner Installer 
Bid: a submitted proposal from an installer or consortium of installers 
Bidder: an installer or consortium of installers submitting a bid 
Partner Installer: the installer or consortium of installers selected by the Selection Committee 

to partner with the Town for the duration of the Program 
Community Solar Farm, or CSF: A solar installation in which multiple individuals or commercial 

establishments may invest and purchase solar power 
Residents: shall be understood to mean Brunswick residents, and to include participating 

commercial establishments, and, if applicable, CSF participants 
NABCEP: North American Board of Certified Energy Practitioners 
 
 
 

SECTION ONE – Program Overview 

A. Program Goals 
 
Solarize Brunswick is aimed at making residential solar PV energy more affordable to residents 
and commercial establishments. The goals of Solarize Brunswick are to: 

● lower the cost of solar energy by reducing customer acquisition costs via a tiered bulk 
pricing mechanism, and transferring those savings directly to residents; and, as a result, 

● significantly increase the number of residential solar installations in the community over 
the course of this project. 

 
Solarize Brunswick aims to overcome common barriers to going solar at a residential scale. 
 
Consumer Confidence 

● Solarize Brunswick provides residents interested in solar energy with information, 
competitive pricing, and an easy start towards a solar installation. 

● Solarize Brunswick is designed to be transparent. Pricing information is posted online, 
along with details about the Solarize program, and a list of area installers. 

● Solarize Brunswick establishes a Selection Committee which evaluates bids based on 
objective criteria. This process enables residents to be confident that the committee’s 
choice is well founded and reliable. 

4 

 



Cost 

● Town outreach helps reduce customer acquisition costs and is expected to lead to 
numerous installation jobs for the Partner Installer. These factors help bidders to offer 
competitive pricing, discounted below their typical installation prices. Pricing is tiered, 
meaning that cost goes down for everyone as more residents sign up to go solar. 

● Financing may be necessary to make solar feasible for many residents. Any financing 
options that an installer has to offer should be described in the Company Profile 
narrative. 

Motivation 

● A critical component of any Solarize program is its deadline. Residents must sign a 
contract with the Partner Installer by a certain date in order to take advantage of the 
special tiered pricing offer. This deadline helps motivate residents to take action. 

● The tiered pricing structure serves as a motivator for residents to talk with their 
neighbors about Solarize and encourage one another to take action. More neighbors 
going solar means lower prices for everyone. 

B. The Solarize Brunswick Process 
 
Overview 
Once the RFP is released, the Town will accept bids up to the bidding deadline. 
 
A Selection Committee will be established by the Town to select the Partner Installer for the 
duration of the program. 
 
Between release of the RFP and selection of the Partner Installer, the Town will post answers to 
all bidder questions online at www.solarizebrunswick.org and the Selection Committee may 
invite one or more bidders for an interview. 
 
The Town expects bidders to submit competitive and realistic bids. Incomplete bids cannot be 
considered. Bidders should not sacrifice their bottom line or the quality of their equipment and 
services in order to participate in this program. The equipment and services included as part of 
the tiered pricing proposal should be representative of a typical roof-mount system. Cost 
adders should truly be adders, not commonly required components. Cost adders can also 
include options that would reduce system cost. 
 
  

5 

 

http://www.solarizebrunswick.org/


 

Program Implementation 
The Partner Installer is selected by the Selection Committee for the duration of the Solarize 
Brunswick program. 
 
Within two weeks of selection, the Partner Installer shall conduct a Launch event for interested 
residents. The Town will assist in making arrangements for the event. 
 
Once selected, the Partner Installer shall assume leadership on outreach and lead tracking. The 
Partner Installer shall provide Solarize Brunswick customers with a turnkey 
inquiry-to-installation process that will make them want to encourage their neighbors to go 
solar, too. Once selected, the Partner Installer becomes the primary contact for potential 
customers. Once the Partner Installer and potential customer are brought together, the Town is 
no longer involved. 
 
Any Brunswick resident may contact the Partner Installer to receive a free site visit and quote 
based on the equipment and special tiered pricing outlined in the Partner Installer’s bid. 
Residents must sign a contract with the Partner Installer by the program deadline in order to be 
eligible. 
 
Residents of Brunswick are free to seek bids and work with other installers. Installers not 
participating in Solarize Brunswick are free to continue marketing and doing business in 
Brunswick. Solarize Brunswick in no way limits customer choice. Installations contracted during 
the Solarize program with installers other than the Partner Installer are not counted toward the 
pricing tiers outlined in the Partner Installer’s bid. 
 
The Partner Installer shall work with eligible commercial establishments and be familiar with 
any unique incentives or tax considerations available to these potential customers. Any 
commercial establishments that participate in Solarize Brunswick will count toward the tiered 
system of pricing. Bidders may establish limitations in size or other aspects of a potential 
system for commercial establishments. If so, that information should be included in Form C. 
 
If applicable, the Partner Installer shall work with eligible CSF participants and be familiar with 
any unique incentives or tax considerations available to these potential customers. CSF 
installations shall count toward the tiered system of pricing. Bidders may establish limitations in 
size or other aspects of a CSF.  If so, that information should be included in Form C. 
 
 
  

6 

 



 

The following chart outlines specific partner roles and responsibilities. 
 

 Town of Brunswick Bidder/Partner Installer 

Identify 
Partner 
Installer 

● Release RFP 

● Initiate the selection process  

● Evaluate bids and select a Partner 

Installer 

● Submit competitive bids 

Reduce 
Cost to 

Customer 

● Using various communication 

resources, make residents aware of 

Solarize Brunswick and maintain a 

list of residents interested in 

participating 

● Help customers understand 

available incentives 

● Provide free site visits and free 

quotes 

● Offer competitive, tiered pricing 

● Help customers understand and 

apply for available incentives 

● Assist customers in assessing 

purchase / financing options 

Marketing
/ 

Outreach/ 
Education 

● Manage website as a central 

resource for program information  

● Provide updates to residents who 

have asked to be included in the 

program 

● Attend and support key community 

outreach events 

● Prepare a presentation for the 

Solarize launch event 

● Answer technical questions from 

residents 

● Supplement community outreach 

(e.g. direct mail, yard signs, etc.) 

Web and 
Media 

● Provide communications and media 

strategy/support 

● Manage attention from regional 

media outlets  

 

● Create a website to which 

solarizebrunswick.org may be 

forwarded 

● Cooperate with partners to provide 

content (e.g. photos, stories) and 

accommodate media 

Leads/ 
Installs 

 ● Provide site assessments, system 

design, and turnkey installation 

  Admin/ 
Tracking 

● Receive and manage reports from 

installers 

● Track leads 

● Ensure the Partner Installer has 

access to up-to-date contacts 

● Track leads and contracts  

 

 
 
  

7 

 



 

C. Timeline 
 
 

RFP Released; Q&A period commences; interviews period commences 7/27/2015 
Question period ends 8/17/2015 
Question responses posted on solarizebrunswick.org 8/21/2015 
Bids are due 9/8/2015 
Interview period ends 9/21/2015 
Partner Installer selected 9/28/2015 
Launch Event TBA (by 10/12/2015) 
Deadline for residents to sign a contract with the Partner Installer to 
take advantage of tiered pricing. 

TBA 

Installations occur TBA 
Survey Solarize Brunswick participants (customers and installer(s)); 
prepare a report on the program. 

TBA 

 

D. Detailed Partner Installer Commitment 
 

Collaboration with the Town 
a. Conduct Launch Event for interested residents. At the Launch Event, the Partner 

Installer will announce the opportunity for residents to arrange site visits, obtain quotes, 
etc. The Town will advertise this meeting via town newsletter, public access TV, and 
local news publications. The Town will provide the location for the meeting. 

b. Collaborate with the Town on press releases; developing additional marketing materials, 
such as photographs, statements of support, testimonials, or other information for use 
in Solarize marketing. 

c. Collaborate with the Town to recommend alternative opportunities, where appropriate, 
for interested residents without feasible sites for a solar PV project. Examples include an 
energy audit, home weatherization, energy efficient heating and appliances, or 
participation in a CSF. These opportunities will not form part of the Solarize Brunswick 
program. 

d. At the end of the program, meet with the Town and provide feedback, including insights 
about customer decision-making process, motivations to install or not install solar, 
suggested program improvements, and the efficiency of different outreach strategies. 
 

Ownership and Pricing 
a. Provide a dollar per watt ($/W) purchase price for a typical, all-inclusive, roof-mount 

installation that will decrease by tier levels as the total contracted capacity of solar PV 
within the community increases (see Form D). Tier levels shall be determined by the 
installer. 

8 

 



b. Provide a list of additional system features (see Form D) which may be preferred or 
required in some (but not the majority of) cases and would impact the final project cost. 
This list of adders and associated costs will be published with other pricing information. 

c. Provide all customers within the community with pricing at the appropriate tiered level. 
Any contract between the Partner Installer and the customer must acknowledge the 
current tier price and lay out a process through which the final system cost will be 
adjusted and reconciled to reflect the community’s final tier price after the program 
deadline. The contract must also include a guarantee that the work will be completed as 
proposed along with a remedy if the work can’t be completed. 
 

Marketing Materials, Presentations, and Claims Made Throughout the Program 
a. The Partner Installer shall refer to the Program as “Solarize Brunswick” in all Program 

materials and marketing efforts, and direct individuals to www.solarizebrunswick.org. 
b. The Partner Installer shall ensure that any media they produce does not claim to 

represent the opinion or position of the Town of Brunswick. 
c. The Partner Installer shall use a reasonable escalator rate for predicted utility price in all 

marketing and in predicting payback periods, and make clear the assumptions upon 

which such figures are based. 

d. The Partner Installer shall use an average current utility rate based on current electricity 
rates (including any increases that have been approved by the Maine Public Utilities 
Commission) in the area in all marketing and make clear the assumptions upon which 
such figures are based. 

e. Information regarding federal tax credits should include a suggestion to contact a tax 
professional. 
 
 

Tracking 
a. The Partner Installer shall track the pricing associated with each project, detail why a 

specific project requires additional costs (if applicable), and provide all information 
regarding final project cost and composition to the Town at the end of the program. 

b. The Partner Installer shall provide the Town with tracking information upon request. 
c. The Partner Installer shall communicate to all leads verbally at the time of the site visit 

that their contact information and project status will be shared with the Town, but only 
for the purpose of measuring the success of the project and to calculate the savings to 
residents by participating in the program. Program participants are to be assured that 
their information will be kept private. 

 

Customer Service 
a. The Partner Installer shall promptly contact all interested residents who request a site 

visit or submit an inquiry. 
b. The Partner Installer shall make every attempt to complete site visits with Solarize 

Brunswick leads within two weeks of first contact, and will clearly communicate with 
leads about the expected timeline and any changes in that timeline. 

9 

 

http://www.solarizebrunswick.org/


c. The Partner Installer shall provide objective information to enable customers to choose 
among any solar financing options offered or otherwise available. 

d. The Partner Installer shall work with customers to identify and apply for available 
incentives, and all Solarize Brunswick projects applying for incentives must meet 
requirements for incentive eligibility. 

e. The Partner Installer shall maintain high standards of quality and value when presenting 
proposals to Solarize Brunswick leads, and aim to design high-efficiency systems. 

f. The Partner Installer shall be familiar with and comply with all relevant codes and 
requirements, at the local, state, and federal level, for all installations to be completed 
through the Program. 

g. The Partner Installer shall outline and be prepared to enact a contingency plan in the 
event that the customer service expectations described are not being met (as 
determined by the Town) due to an increased volume of leads or any other reason. 

 
  

10 

 



 

SECTION TWO – Application Process 

A. Eligible Applicants 
In order for an installer to be eligible to submit a proposal, the installer must: 

a. Demonstrate experience and proficiency in solar PV installations, and have at least one 
master electrician and at least one NABCEP-certified professional. 

b. Submit a proposal that meets all of the criteria outlined in Section Three below. 

B. Application Deadline 
Completed bids must be emailed as a PDF to Linda Smith, lsmith@brunswickme.org, no later 

than 9/8/2015. Please label your proposal materials clearly. 

C. In-Person Interviews 
The Town may opt to interview prospective installers.  If so, the interviews will be held at the 
Brunswick Town Offices (specific day and times to be determined). 

D. Questions and Contact Information  
Linda Smith 
lsmith@brunswickme.org 
(207) 721-0292 

E. Guidelines for Bidding as a Consortium 
A consortium consisting of more than one installer may bid collectively as long as the 
consortium partners take responsibility for managing the partnership and maintaining a simple 
message and point of contact for residents. Partnering installers should strive to maintain the 
following critical program components: 

● A single lead contact person for the partnering installers is identified; 
● A single tiered pricing structure; and 
● Protocols regarding the shared responsibility and assignment of individual projects to 

participating installers. Partnering installers take full responsibility for managing their 
relationship.  

F. Necessary Forms 
● All Section Four forms completed; 
● A sample Solarize Brunswick customer proposal for a residential system; 
● A sample Solarize Brunswick customer contract for a residential system; 
● (if applicable) Sample terms for any lease or other financing options offered, including 

how they are incorporated into the program, esp. with respect to the tiered pricing 
model. 

11 

 

mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org
mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org


SECTION THREE – Evaluation Criteria 
 
Requirements: The Town will review all bids for completeness prior to forwarding bids to the 
Selection Committee. Bids will be considered complete if each of the required forms is present 
and completed (see Necessary Forms, above). Incomplete bids cannot be considered. 

 
Evaluation Criteria: Complete bids will be evaluated by a Selection Committee selected by the 
Town for this purpose only. Selection of an installer will be based on the following criteria, 
weighted in roughly equal measure. 

● Quality of the equipment and installation. Factors such as past experience of the 
installer(s) and quality of past installations shall be factored into this criterion. 

● Support of the customer provided by the bidder before, during and following 
installation. Factors such as the quality of past customer support delivered by the 
installer(s), and the ability of the installer(s) to deliver excellent customer support to the 
large number of potential installations resulting from a successful Solarize program shall 
be factored into this criterion. 

● Value of the proposed bid to the customer, in particular the value of the tiered pricing 
mechanism and cost adders. Factors such as financing options shall be factored into this 
criterion. 

● Commitment to outreach and promotional activities proposed by the bidder, especially 
to growing the base of potential customers beyond that achieved by the Town prior to 
selection. Factors such as creative promotional ideas, history of past promotions carried 
out by the installer(s), and commitment to growing the use of solar in Brunswick beyond 
the scope of the program shall be factored into this criterion. 

Other differentiating factors not listed above may also be considered at the discretion of the 
Selection Committee. 
 
 

SECTION FOUR – Forms 
 
The following forms must be completed and submitted as part of the bid. 

 
 

  

12 

 



 

Form A – Installer Contact Information 

If applying as a consortium, please submit a separate Form A for each consortium partner 

 

Primary contact for questions related to this proposal 
Company Name: 

Year founded: 

Website: 

If you are a subcontractor, list the lead company: 

Address of Headquarters: 

Address of Main Office for Solarize-Specific Staff (if different from Headquarters): 

Primary Contact Name and Title:  

Email: Phone: 

NABCEP Certified? [Yes/No] 

 
 
  

13 

 



 

Form B – Company Profile 

If applying as a consortium, please submit a separate Form B for each consortium partner. 
Please also submit a separate Form B for all relevant subcontractors. 

Number of Installations in Maine 

2012: 2013: 2014: 

Briefly describe your history of installations in midcoast Maine (listing towns and approximate 

number of installations). If fewer than 10 installs, please explain why you have not been more 

active in this region: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
If applying as part of a consortium, please list partnering installers below: 

 
 

 
If not selected as the Solarize Brunswick Partner Installer, is your company interested in being on a 

list of installers willing to subcontract with the Partner Installer?     Yes:        No:  

 

 

14 

 



Briefly describe your company and outline its history (include any changes in size, business model, 

name, or ownership since your founding). What services does your company provide? Does your 

company typically contract out for any portion of your work related to solar PV installation? 

Please explain. Please indicate the number Master Electricians and the number of 

NABCEP-certified professionals your company has on staff. Use additional pages if necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

15 

 



 

Please list three customer references, preferably in or near Brunswick. 

Customer Name: Town: State: 

Phone Number: 

 

Email Address: 

Date of 

Install: 

System 

Size: 

Additional Notes: 

 
 
 
 

 
Customer Name: Town: State: 

Phone Number: 

 

Email Address: 

Date of 

Install: 

System 

Size: 

Additional Notes: 

 
 
 
 

 
Customer Name: Town: State: 

Phone Number: 

 

Email Address: 

Date of 

Install: 

System 

Size: 

Additional Notes: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

16 

 



Form C – Core Solarize Proposal 

If applying as a consortium, please submit a single Form C on behalf of all partnering installers. 

Bidding company or consortium: 

 

QUESTION 1 – Provide a narrative summary of your company’s/consortium’s Solarize bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

17 

 



QUESTION 2 – Please outline a contingency plan in the event that the flow of leads is greater 

than anticipated and you are unable to provide timely and high-quality customer service to all 

Solarize Brunswick leads. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
QUESTION 3 – One goal of Solarize Brunswick is to help guide customers who don’t go solar 

through Solarize toward other energy-related resources (e.g. an energy audit, energy efficient 

appliances, other renewable energy resources). How will your company/consortium support 

these efforts? Include any existing consumer education practices, relationships with other 

energy-related companies, and/or any unique in-house expertise. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

18 

 



QUESTION 4 – As stated in the Program Summary, the Town is committed to supporting the 

Solarize Brunswick program for Brunswick’s commercial establishments. Please describe any 

experience you have with commercial installations. Include any relevant concerns, 

considerations or limitations. 

 
 

 
 

QUESTION 5 – As stated in the Program Summary, the Town is interested in supporting the 

Solarize Brunswick program for CSFs within Brunswick. Please describe any experience you have 

working with CSFs. Indicate whether your bid would support CSFs. Include any relevant 

concerns, considerations or limitations. 

 
 

 
 
 

19 

 



QUESTION 6 – If applicable, list marketing services your company/consortium will provide to 

complement and support the Town’s outreach (e.g. paying for lawn signs, postcard mailings, 

vehicle magnets). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

20 

 



Form D – Equipment and Pricing Proposal 

If applying as a consortium, please submit a single Form D for all consortium partners. 

Note that all information provided in Form D will be publicly available throughout the Solarize 

program. 

 

Bidding company or consortium: 

 

Proposed Standard Equipment 
The chart below must include all equipment required for a typical Solarize solar PV installation 

(all-inclusive, roof-mount) as represented in the standard tiered pricing proposal outlined on the next 

page. If more than one variety of equipment might be used without impacting project cost, please 

indicate below. Please also write in any relevant items not listed here and any available warranties on 

individual components.  

 

Major 

Component 

Manufacturer, 

Model#, Country 

Where Produced 

Warranty Notes 

Inverter(s) 

 

   

PV Modules    

Mounting 

System 

   

Production 

Meter 

   

Data 

Acquisition 

System 

   

Other (list; 

use add’l 

pages if 

necessary) 

   

 

  

21 

 



Tiered Standard Pricing Proposal 
Installers are expected to offer a purchase model for pricing. Other lease/PPA/financing options will 

be considered. All installers interested in proposing anything other than a purchase model for pricing 

should contact the Town prior to submitting a bid. 

 

Please Identify 3-5 Standard Pricing Tiers in the chart provided below. Tier levels indicate total 

aggregated amounts of contracted solar. Pricing at each tier should reflect the total installed cost of a 

typical installation, including the standard equipment outlined on the previous page. The proposed 

price to the customer must decrease for each of the proposed tiers. The price drop and total capacity 

jump can be different between tiers. 

 
Note: Prices indicated below do not take into account system size. Any variations in installed cost 

resulting from system size should be defined in the next section under “Increased Pricing Factors.” 

 
 Tier 1 

(e.g. 0-30kW) 

Tier 2 

(e.g. 30-50kW) 

Tier 3 Tier 4 

(optional) 

Tier 5 

(optional) 

Tier 

bracket, 

in kW 

 
 
 

    

Purchase 

Price 

($/W) 

 
 
 

    

 
 

What electricity pricing escalator will be used to calculate return on investment for customers? 

 
 

 
 
  

22 

 



 
 
 

Adjusted Pricing Factors Chart 
List any factors that will increase or decrease the standard tiered pricing proposed above. Indicate the 

impact on total project cost in $/W or as a flat cost 
 

 Description of Cost Adder Increased Cost ($/W) Notes 

Site Specific, 

e.g. 

multiple roofs, 

tilt racking, 

roof material, 

steep/tall roof,  

ground mount 

 

   

Electrical, e.g 

electrical panel 

upgrade / 

sub-panel, 

meter upgrade, 

interior conduit 

run 

 

   

System 

Monitoring 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 

  

23 

 



 

 

 Description of Cost Adder Increased Cost ($/W) Notes 

System Size 

e.g. additional 

cost per kW for 

systems under X 

kW, or discount 

for larger 

systems 

 

   

Other, e.g. 

alternative 

inverter 

options, 

alternative 

panel options, 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Please also list any other services not provided by the installer that, if required, could add to 

total project cost (e.g. tree removal or structural reinforcement of rafters): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

24 

 



Please provide a narrative outlining the features and merits of the equipment you have 

proposed (both the standard equipment options and additional options listed under adjusted 

pricing factors) in terms a layperson would understand. Please also comment on any possible 

product sourcing issues which might arise, including your contingency plan should any of the 

promised equipment become unavailable during the program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Completed bids must be emailed as a PDF to Linda Smith, lsmith@brunswickme.org, no later 

than 9/8/2015. 

25 

 

mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org



	ca a
	ca a July 6 2015 min
	ca b yes
	ca b abarwment_20150714140558
	ca c yes
	CA c bingo_20150714140623
	ca d yes
	ca d mma balot_20150714140525
	mr a no
	mr b yes
	MR b Town Council Expenditure Rpt June 2015
	MR b Town Council Revenue Rpt June 2015
	mr c no
	mr d no
	mr e yes
	mr e KFP Council Update Sheet
	mr f yes
	mr f Memo Nancy Patricia 071515
	mr g yes
	mr g Memo Pine Street Access 071515
	mr h no
	80 yes
	80 a Explanation of July 2015 Requested Parking Changes
	80 a Memo Sidewalk Dining 071515
	80 b Draft Amendment to Chapter 10 Regarding Use of Sidewalks for food vendors
	81 yes
	75 a Explanation of July 2015 Requested Parking Changes
	81 Proposed Parking Ordinance Changes for July 2015 - Rev 2
	82 yes
	82 full.pdf
	82 1 SolarizeBrunswickPPT20Jul2015
	82 2 SolarizeBrunswickBackground20Jul2015
	82 3 SolarizeBrunswickRFP20Jul2015
	82 4 SolarizeBrunswickFlyer20Jul2015

	82 full.pdf
	82 1 SolarizeBrunswickPPT20Jul2015
	82 2 SolarizeBrunswickBackground20Jul2015
	82 3 SolarizeBrunswickRFP20Jul2015
	82 4 SolarizeBrunswickFlyer20Jul2015


